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Directors’ Report
for the Year Ended 31 December 2015

The Directors take pleasure in presenting the FiahrStatements of thBank of South Pacific Limited and
subsidiaries (Bank and the Group) for the year drgfeDecember 2015. In order to comply with thevjsion of
the Companies Act 1997, the Directors report devid:

Principal activities

The principal activity of the Bank of South Pacifianited (BSP)is the provision of commercial banking
finance services. The Group’s activities alsoudel stock broking, fund management and life busirsesvices
throughout Papua New Guinea and the Pacific re®&P is a Bankisted on the Port Moresby Stock Excha
(POMSo0X), incorporated under the Companies Act apud New Guinea, and is an authorifzohk under th
Banks and Financial Institutions Act of Papua Newin@a. The Bank and the Group are licensed to tparahe
Solomon Islands, Fiji Islands, Cook Islands, Sarand Tonga. The registered office at Douglas Street, P«
Moresby.

Review of operations

For the year ended 31 December 2015, Group’s pafifir tax was K531.879 million (2014: K507.388llion).
The Bank’s profit after tax was K505.749 million0O@4: K512.892 million which included dividend income ¢
K19.221 million received from BSP Life (Fiji) Limad).

Dividends

Dividend payment totaling K369.810 million was pa&id2015 (2014: K309.141 million). Aetailed breakup ¢
this is provided in Note 23.

Directors and officers

The following were directors of the Bank of SouthicRic Limited at 31 December 2015:

Sir K Constantinou, OBE Mr. R Fleming, CSM Ms. Hada
Mr. G Aopi, CBE Mr. T E Fox, OBE Dr. |1 Temu
Sir. N Bogan Mr. G Robb, OAM

Mr. E B Gangloff Mr. A Mano

Details of directors’ tenure and directors and exiegt remuneration during the year are providedote 27 o
the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statemdis.CEO Robin Fleming remains the only executivector.

The company secretary is Mary Johns.

Independent Audit Report

The financial statements have been audited anddhbeuread in conjunctiowith the independent audit report
page 49. Details of amounts paid to the auditorsafamlit and other services are shown in Note 4thefNoes tc
the Financial Statements.

Donations & Sponsorships
Donations and sponsorship by the Group during &a gmounted to K9,091,2%8014: K9,357,564).
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Directors’ Report
for the Year Ended 31 December 2015

Change in accounting policies

No changes in accounting policies significantly impacted the Group during the year.
For, and on behalf of, the Directors.

Dated and Signed in accordance with a resolution of the Directors in Port Moresby this 11" day of March 2016.

| L‘A\\
e e iz

Sir Kostas C(yAntinou, OBE Robin Fleming, CSM
Chafrman Group Chief Executive OfficerfDirecto
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Statement by the Directors
for the Year Ended 31 December 2015

The Directors declare that:

(a) in the Directors’ opinion, there are reasonable grounds to believe that the Bank and the Group will be able to
pay their debts as and when they become due and payable; and

(b) in the Directors’ opinion, the attached financial statements and notes thereto are in accordance with the PNG
Companies Act 1997, including compliance with accounting standards and give a true and fair view of the
financial position and performance of the Bank and the Group.

Additional Statutory Information
The results of the Bank and the Group’s operations during the financial year have, in the opinion of the Directors, not

been materially affected by items of an abnormal nature, other than those disclosed in the financial statements.

In the opinion of the Directors, no circumstances have arisen that make adherence to the existing method of valuation
of assets or liabilities of the Bank and the Group misleading or inappropriate.

At the date of this report the Directors are not aware of any circumstances that would render the values attributed to
current assets in the financial statements misleading.

No contingent liability other than that disclosed in the notes to the attached financial statements has become

enforceable, or is likely to become enforceable, within a period of twelve months from the date of this report, that
will materially affect the Bank and the Group in its ability to meet obligations as and when they fall due.

Dated and signed in accordance with a resolution of the Directors at Port Moresby this 1 1 day of March 2016.

- Nl ™ f
Sir K%st ntinou, OBE Robin Fleming, CSM
Chairhan Group Chief Executive Officer/Rirector
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Statement of Comprehensive Income
for the Year Ended 31 December 2015

Consolidated Bank
All amounts are expressed in K'000 Note 2015 2014 2015 2014
Interest income 2 1,100,866 947,340 1,083,281 947,309
Interest expense 2 (94,615) (62,579) (93,098) (63,640)
Net interest income 1,006,251 884,761 990,183 883,669
Fee and commission income 3 310,468 305,031 301,232 296,773
Other income 4 209,175 293,255 200,425 312,477
Net banking operating income 1,525,894 1,483,047 1,491,840 1,492,919
Net insurance premium income 94,322 90,330 - -
Investment revenue 93,405 69,092 - -
Increase in policy liabilities 39(b) (34,984) (17,491) - -
Policy maintenance & investment expenses (67,488)66,076) - -
Share of profits from associates and jointly
controlled entities 9 1,598 10,233 - -
Claims, surrender and maturities (65,608) (70,404) - -
Net insurance operating income 39(a) 21,245 15,684 - -
Net operating income 1,547,139 1,498,731 1,491,8401,492,919
Impairment expense 13 (89,905) (76,796) (86,657) (76,796)
Impairment on subsidiary 8 - - (11,068) -
Operating expenses 5 (691,084)(703,085)  (665,979) (693,671)
Profit before income tax 766,150 718,850 728,136 722,452
Income tax expense 6 (234,271)(211,511)  (222,387) (209,560)
Net profit for the year 531,879 507,339 505,749 5892

Other comprehensive income

Items that may be subsequently reclassifit
profit or loss

Translation of financial information of foreign
operations to presentation currency 48,839 (24,354) 31,912 (18,082)

Items that will not be reclassified to profit orsk

Recognition of deferred tax on asset revalua 24

reserve 1,301 (35,762) 4,592 (35,762)
Net movement in asset revaluation 24 21,450 44,330 14,304 44,330
Other comprehensive income, net of tax 71,590 (15,786) 50,808 (9,514)
Total comprehensive income for the year 603,469 491,553 556,557 503,378
Earnings per share - basic & diluted (toea) 23 113.7 108.3 108.1 109.5

The attached notes form an integral part of thieee€ial statements.
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Statement of Financial Position

As at 31 December 2015

Consolidated Bank

All amounts are expressed in K’000 Note 2015 2014 2015 2014
ASSETS
Cash and balances with Central Bank 10 1,202,4663551469 1,010,856 1,262,306
Treasury & Central Bank bills 11 2,503,109 2,183,237 2,501,256 2,183,237
Amounts due from other banks 12 695,280 380,653 572,400 380,653
Statutory deposits with Central Banks 25 1,359,6061,251,582 1,341,650 1,251,582
Other financial assets 16 2,308,926 2,361,642,074,124 2,188,067
Loans, advances and other receivables from

customers 13 8,621,514 6,756,997 8,181,227 6,688,14
Assets held for sale 14 35,135 65,052 35,135 65,052
Property, plant and equipment 14 686,325 662,313 597,373 629,682
Assets subject to operating lease 14 52,857 53,783 52,857 53,783
Investment in associates and joint ventures 9 367, 118,389 29,447 38,520
Investment in subsidiaries 8 - - 259,869 108,635
Intangible assets 7 110,226 110,374 99,601 104,210
Investment properties 15 101,019 70,684 - -
Deferred tax assets 6 147,389 111,677 159,290 115,552
Other assets 17 255,135 334,648 206,558 285,093
Total assets 18,196,303 15,816,507 17,121,643 15,354,519
LIABILITIES
Amounts due to other banks 18 344,346 259,892 344,877 259,879
Customer deposits 19 14,595,374 12,708,383 14,248,296 12,804,555
Subordinated debt securities 20 75,525 75,525 75,525 75,525
Other liabilities 21 969,179 756,548 353,252 257,674
Provision for income tax 6 39,005 63,022 36,168 62,738
Other provisions 22 143,698 152,944 132,535 147,800
Total liabilities 16,167,127 14,016,314 15,190,653 13,608,171
SHAREHOLDERS EQUITY
Ordinary shares 23 374,621 379,297 374,621 379,297
Retained earnings 24 1,399,490 1,219,436 1,340,0001,183,505
Other reserves 24 255,065 201,460 216,369 183,546
Total shareholders’ equity 2,029,176 1,800,193 1,930,990 1,746,348
Total equity and liabilities 18,196,303 15,816,507 17,121,643 15,354,519

The attached notes form an integral part of thessdidated financial statements.
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Statement of Changes In Shareholders’ Equity

for the Year Ended 31 December 2015

Share Retained
Bank capital Reserves earnings Total
All amounts are expressed in K'000 Note
Balance as at 1 January 2014 381,498 181,446 991,368 1,554,312
Net profit - - 512,892 512,892
2013 final dividend paid 23 - - (215,476) (215,476)
2014 interim dividend paid 23 - - (93,665) (93,665)
Share buyback 23 (2,201) - - (2,201)
BSP Life policy reserve 24 - 24,055 (24,055) -
Transfer from Asset Revaluation Reserve 24 -(12,441) 12,441 -
Other comprehensive income - (9,514) - (9,514)
Balance at 31 December 2014 379,297 183,546 1,183,505 1,746,348
Net profit - - 505,749 505,749
2014 final dividend paid 23 - - (262,021) (262,021)
2015 interim dividend paid 23 - - (105,218) (105,218)
Share buyback 23 (4,676) - - (4,676)
Transfer from Asset Revaluation Reserve 24 - (22,103) 22,103 -
BSP Life policy reserve 24 - 4,118 (4,118) -
Other comprehensive income - 50,808 - 50,808
Balance at 31 December 2015 374,621 216,369 1,340,000 1,930,990
Group
Balance as at 1 January 2014 381,498 202,272 1,035,290 1,619,060
Net profit - - 507,339 507,339
2013 final dividend paid 23 - - (215,476) (215,476)
2014 interim dividend paid 23 - - (93,665) (93,665)
BSP Life policy reserve 24 - 24,055 (24,055) -
Prior year consolidation adjustment 24 - 3,360 (2,438) 922
Transfer from Asset Revaluation Reserve 24 - (12,441) 12,441 -
Share buyback 23 (2,201) - - (2,201)
Other comprehensive income - (15,786) - (15,786)
Balance at 31 December 2014 379,297 201,4601,219,436 1,800,193
Net profit - - 531,879 531,879
2014 final dividend paid 23 - - (263,872) (263,872)
2015 interim dividend paid 23 - - (105,938) (105,938)
Share buyback 23 (4,676) - - (4,676)
Transfer from asset revaluation reserve 24 -(22,103) 22,103 -
BSP Life policy reserve 24 - 4,118 (4,118) -
Other Comprehensive income - 71,590 - 71,590
Balance at 31 December 2015 374,621 255,065 1,399,490 2,029,176

The attached notes form an integral part of thessdidated financial statements.
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Statement of Cash Flow
for the Year Ended 31 December 2015

Notes Consolidated Bank
All amounts are expressed in K'000 2015 2014 2015 2014

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Interest received 1,095,363 911,236 1,077,459 911,236
Fees and other income 559,043 816,898 420,288 638,786
Interest paid (73,977) (61,185) (76,268) (61,844)
Amounts paid to suppliers and employees (536,708) (662,045) (433,083) (497,431)
Operating cash flow before changes in

operating assets 28 1,043,721 1,004,904 988,396 990,747
Increase in loans, advances and o

receivables from customers (1,983,852) (1,563,291) (1,579,065) (1,555,657)
Increase in statutory deposits with the Centralkan (108,024) (185,002) (90,068) (185,002)
Decrease in bills receivable and other assets 285,3 42,649 65,851 41,540
Increase in customer deposits 1,886,991 468,351 1,443,741 508,329
(Decrease)/increase in bills payable and otheililigis 180,266 (123,960) 58,021 (121,086)
Net cash flow from operations before income tax 161,500 (356,349) 886,876 (321,129)
Income taxes paid (282,784) (212,870) (282,837) (212,556)
Net cash flow from operating activities 881,716 (569,219) 604,039 (533,685)
CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Decrease/(increase) in government securities (384,565) 915,226 (533,611) 836,664
Expenditure on property, plant & equipment (154,540) (192,269) (111,508) (186,162)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant & equiptne 36,088 13,900 36,088 14,218
Proceeds from other investments 27,332 9,895 27,332 -
Purchase of controlled entities, net of cash aegluir 40 - - 176,524 -
Additional funding of subsidiaries - - (16,251) (11,706)
Net cash flow from investing activities (475,685) 746,752 (421,426) 653,014
CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Share buyback 23 (4,676) (2,201) (4,676) (2,201)
Dividends paid 23  (369,810) (309,141) (367,239) (309,141)
Net cash flow from financing activities (374,486) (311,342) (371,915) (311,342)
Net Increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalent 31,545 (133,809) (189,302) (192,013)
Effect of exchange rate movements on cash and cash

equivalents 45,625 (13,345) 44,601 (10,461)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning ofdéhe y 1,476,230 1,623,384 1,383,080 1,585,554
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of

the year 28 1,553,400 1,476,230 1,238,379 1,383,080

The attached notes form an integral part of thessdaidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
for the Year Ended 31 December 2015

1.  Accounting Policies

The principal accounting policies adopted in theparation of these consolidated finaatatements are set out bel:
These policies have been consistently applied ltdhal periods presented unless otherwise statelde aBsets ar
liabilities are presented in order of liquidity tive statement of financial position.

A. Basis of Presentation & General Accounting Police

The consolidated financial statements of the Bdrkawuth Pacific Limited (the Bank) and the Grare prepare
in accordance with International Financial RepartiStandardsas issued by the International Account
Standards Boardand interpretations of these standards issued Iy Itibernational Financial Reporti
Interpretations Committee. They are prepared erbésis of the historical cost convention, as modifi the
revaluation of certain non-current assets, findnogruments and liabilities.

Estimates and assumptions have been used to adusef@mity with generally accepted accounting piples n
the preparation of thes@nancial statements. These assumptions and dstnafect balances of assets

liabilities, contingent liabilities and commitmerasthe end of the reporting period, and amountgweénues an
expenses during the repodiperiod. Whilst the estimates are based on mamages best knowledge of curr
events and conditions, actual results may ultingadéfer from those estimates.

The financial statements are presented in Papua®lénea Kina, expressed in thousands of Kampermitte
by Papua New Guinea Accounting Standards.

Standards, amendment and interpretations effectiven the year ended 31 December 2015

The following new standards and amendments werécapfe for the first time during the accountingripe
beginning 1 January 2015:

e Annual improvements 2012 (effective 1 July 2014kesaminor changes to IFRS 2, IFRS 3, IFRS 8, |
13, IAS 16, IAS 37 and IAS 39.

¢ Annual improvements 2013 (effective 1 July 20f@gkes minor changes to IFRS 1, IFRS 3, 3FR3 anc
IAS 40.

Other standards, amendments and interpretationshwhére released during the accounting period Ipéginl
January 2015 are not relevant or material to theur

Standards, amendments and interpretations issued ot yet effective forthe year ended 31 Decembe
2015 or adopted early

The following standards, amendments and interpeetaitto existing standards have been published axa
mandatory for the entity’s accounting periods baiig on or after 1 January 2016 or later perjdmg the entit:
has not early adopted them:

 Amendment to IFRS 11 “Joint arrangements” on adtijoins of an interest in a joint operation (effetit
January 2016). These amendments provide new grédam how to account for the acquisition of anregé
in a joint operation that constitutes a business.

 Amendments to IAS 27 “Separate financial statenieomsthe equity method (effective 1 January 20
These amendments allow entities to use the equitthad to account for investments in subsidsyijoint
ventures and associates in their separate finasteigdments.

* Amendments to IFRS 10 “Consolidated financial stegets” and IAS 28 “Investments in associates aimd
ventures” (original effective date of 1 January @@bw postponed ) in l&ion to the sale or contribution
assets between an investor and its associatenvrvgimture. The main consequence of the amendrietital
a full gain or loss is recognised when a transadtiwolves a business (whether it is housed inbsisliery or
not). A partial gain or loss is recognised whemamdaction involves assets that do not constituiasiness
even if these assets are housed in a subsidiary.

* Annual improvements 2014 (effective 1 January8)@thakes minor changes to IFRS 5, &R, IAS 19, an
IAS 34.

 Amendments to IAS 1 “Presentation of Financial Stents” (effective 1 January 2016) clarify guidant
IAS 1 on materiality and aggregation, the presémabf subtotals, the structure of financial stadets anc
the discloste of accounting policies. The amendments formragfahe IASB’s Disclosure Initiative, whic
explores how financial statement disclosures caimipeoved.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
for the Year Ended 31 December 2015

A. Basis of Presentation & General Accounting Polies (continued)

* IFRS 15 “Revenue from otracts with customers” (effective 1 January 208 converged standard fr
the IASB and FASB on revenue recognition. The stasavill improve the financial reporting of revenaed
improve comparability of the top line in financi&thtements globally.

* IFRS 9, ‘Financial Instruments” (effective 1 Janu@018) replaces the guidance in IAS 39 with a dad
that is less complex and principles based. The sianwdard addresses the classification, measureanel
derecognition of financial assets afisncial liabilities, relaxes the requirements f@dge accounting al
introduces an expected credit losses model th&aep the current incurred loss impairment model.

* |IFRS 16, “Leases” (effective 1 January 2019) aepb the guidance in IAS 17 anill have a significan
impact on accounting by lessees. The previousngdisbn under IAS 17 between finance leases andatipg
leases for lessees has been removed and IFRS 1Gegiire a lessee to recognise a lease lial
representing future lease payments and a ‘rightsef-asset’ for virtually all lease contracts. Thisren
optional exemption for certain short-term leased Eases of lowalue assets. For lessees who previc
entered into operating leases, one of the maindtspaill be an increase in debt on the balancetshee

B. Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporageassets and liabilities of all controlled ensitef the Banl
and the Group as at 31 December 2015, and theiltsder the year then ended.

Controlled entities are those over which the Grbag the power to govern financial and operatindcies,
generally accompanied by a shareholding that cordmahe majority of voting rights, and are commc
referred to as subsidiaries.

Subsidiaries are accounted for at acquisition uttteacquisition cost method of accounting, where:

= acquisition cost is measured at fair value of asseinsferredequity issued, liabilities assumed and
directly attributable costs of the transaction;

= identifiable net assets are recorded initially@jlasition, at their fair values;

= any excess of the acquisition cost over the releghare of identifiable net assets acquired isteckas
goodwill, and any deficiency is recognised direatiyhe statement of comprehensive income;

= All intercompany transactions and balances areieditad.

C. Investment in Associates and Joint Arrangements

Investments in Associates

Associates are entities over which the Group hgrgfstant, but not controlling influencgenerally accompanie
by a shareholding conferring between 20% - 50%otifvg rights.

In the consolidated financial statements, thesestments are accounted for under the equity method.

Interests In Joint Arrangements

The Group applies IFRS 11 tdl pint ventures. Under IFRS 11 investments imj@arrangements are classif
as either joint ventures or joint operations dej@man the contractual rights and obligations affemvestor.

Joint ventures are accounted for using the equigshod in the consolidated financial statements. Urtle
equity method of accounting, interests in jointtwees are initially recognised at cost and adjusitedeafter ti
recognise the Group’s share of the post-acquisitimfits or losses and movemerits other comprehensiy
income. When the Group’s share of losses in a jegnture equals or exceeds its interests in thigyemthich
includes any londgerm interests that, in substance, form part ofgfweip’s net investment in the joint ventur
the Group does not recognise further losses, urniésssiincurred obligations or made payments onlbehthe
joint ventures

Interests in joint ventures classified as heldsale are accounted for under IFRS 5 Moment Assets Held fi
Sale and Discontinued Operations.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
for the Year Ended 31 December 2015

D. Revenue
Interest income and expense
Interest income and expense are recognized intétensent of comprehensiveciome on an accrual basis us
the effective yield method. The income arisingnirthe various forms of instalmecrtedit has been determin
using the effective interest method.

Interest income includes coupons earned on ingtriteck, accrued discount and premium on Treasod
Central Bank bills.

Short term insurance contracts
These contracts aregfierm Life, Medical and Travel policies sold antlerwritten by BSP Health Care (F
Limited.

These contracts protect the Group’s customers fhentonsequences of events such as death, menieagenc
or loss on travel. Guaranteed benefits paide@rurrence of the specified insurance event aherefixed or linkec
to the extent of the economic loss suffered bypibieyholder. There are no maturity or surrendardsits.

For all these contracts, premiums are recogniseé\anue (earned prenms) proportionally over the period
coverage. The portion of premium received offoirte contracts that relates to unexpired riskbatStatement ¢
Financial Position date is reported as the uneapneghium liability. Premiums are shown before dsitun of
commission.

Claims and loss adjustment expenses are chargatteme as incurred based on the estimated liakiitit
compensation owed to contract holders or benefésgarhey include direct and indirect claims settlemeosts
and arise fronevents that have occurred up to the Statementnafni€ial Position date even if they have not
been reported to the Group. The Group does nobuligdts liabilities for unpaid claims. Liabilitiefor unpaic
claims are estimated using the input ofeassnents for individual cases reported to the Gianug statistice
analyses for the claims incurred but not reported] to estimate the expected ultimate cost of ncoraplex
claims that may be affected by external factorsi{sas court decisions).

Long term insurance contracts

These contracts insure human life events (for exardpath, survival, disability or critical illneseyer a long
duration. Guaranteed benefits paid on occurrendbeospecified insurance event are fixed or lintethe lewel
of bonus declared on the policy. Most of the pekchave maturity and surrender benefits.

For all these contracts, premiums are recognise@\anue when they become payable by the cont@deh
Premiums are shown before deduction of commission.

Approximately 90% of the above contracts in the Up's portfolio contain a Discretionary ParticipatiBeatur:
(DPF). This feature entitles the holder to receasa supplement to generated benefits, additlerafits in the
form of reversionary bonuses.

The liability for long term insurance contractsifgipally Life Insurance) has been determined incadanct
with LPS 1.04 Valuation of Policy Liabilities, issd by the Australian Prudential Regulation Authorit

The policy liability is calculatedni a way that allows for the systematic release lafmed profit margins ¢
services are provided to policy owners and the megs relating to those services are received (Maon
Services methodology). Services used to determinét precognition inclide the cost of expected insura
claims and the allocation of future bonuses. Tability is generally determined as the presenteafiall future
expected payments, expenses, taxes and profit msargduced by the present value of all future etguec
premiums and take into consideration projectedréutaonuses. The liabilities are recalculated ah dzdanct
date using best estimate assumptions. These adsumpire revisited regularly and adjusted for &
experiences on claims, expense, niiytand investment returns. The policy liabiléyso includes policy owni
retained earnings.

Insurance policy liabilities are further detailedNiote 39.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
for the Year Ended 31 December 2015

E. Fee and commission income

Fees and commissions are generally recognised anaunalbasis when the service has been provided. Allr
risk related fees that constitute cost recoverytaken to income when levied. Loan origination faes deferred
over the expected term of the financial instrumeattording to the effective interest methdte effective intere:
method uses the rate thetactly discounts estimated future payments aneipecthrough the expected life of -
instrument or when appropriate, a shorter periathémet carrying amount of the financial asset.

F. Borrowing expenses

Expenses associated with the borrowing of fundschegged to the statement of comprehensie®me in th
period in which they are incurred.

G. Provision for loan impairment

Loans are originated by providing funds directlythe torrower and are recognised when cash is advanc
borrowers.

All loans, advances and other receivables fromarnstsare subject to continuous management review
specific provision for loan impairment is estabéighf there is objective evidenckat the Bank and the Gro
will not be able to collect all amounts due undes terms of loans. The amount of the provisiorreximates
the difference between the carrying amount andebeverable amount, which is the current best estrof the
preent value of expected future cash flows arisingnfrihe asset. All bad debts are written off agathe
specific provision for loan impairment in the pe&fion which they are classified as irrecoverablaibsgquer
recoveries are credited to the provision for lazsses in the statement of comprehensive income.

General provisions for impairment are maintaineccéwer incurred losses unidentified at balance datéhe
overall portfolio of loans, advances and other ingdgles from customers. Thegwisions are determined havi
regard to the level of risk weighted assets, econaonditions, the general risk profile of the dteabrtfolio,
past loss experience and a range of other critdffee amount necessary to bring the provisionfiédr asesse:
levels, after write-offs, is charged to the statet# comprehensive income.

H. Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of amigition over the acquirer’s interest in the feaue of the
identifiable assets and liabilitieexquired as at the exchange transaction. Goodwitported in the statement
financial position as an intangible asset.

In determining goodwill, management considers vegidactors including net selling price of the acegd
business, existingnarket share, potential growth opportunities, atieio factors inherent in the acquil
business. This assessment is reviewed at eacmcealdate, so that any indication of impairment !
implications for the recoverability of goodwill cdre tested, red adjustments to the carrying value of good
made if necessary.

I.  Computer systems development costs

Costs incurred to develop and enhance the Banklen&roup’s computer systems are capitalised ta@xent
that benefits do not relate soldly revenue that has already been brought to acanohiwill contribute to th
future earning capacity of the economic entity. Sgheosts are amortised over the estimated ecorifenaf four
years using the straight-line method. Costs aswmtiavith mantaining computer software programs
recognised as an expense when incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
for the Year Ended 31 December 2015

J.  Property, plant and equipment

Land and buildings are measured at fair value. Falue is determined on the basis of regular inddpet
valuation prepared by externadluation experts, based on discounted cash flowspitalisation of net incon
(as appropriate). The fair values are recognisatiérconsolidatefinancial statements of the consolidated en
and are reviewed at the end of each reporting gedensure that the carrying value of land and builgliisgno
materially different from their fair values.

Any revaluation increase arising on the revaluatdriand and buildings is credited to the assetlation
reserve, except to the extent thateiverses a revaluation decrease for the same ass@iysly recognised as
expense in profit or loss, in which case the inseeia credited to the statement of comprehensiveniie to the
extent of the decrease previously charged. A dser@acarryig amount arising on the revaluation of land
buildings is charged as an expense in dteement of comprehensive income to the extentittexceeds th
balance, if any, held in the asset revaluationrieseelating to a previous revaluation of that &sBeildings
under constructions areferred to as work in progress and are accoumtedtfcost and subsequently reclassi
to building (Premises) upon completion.

Depreciation is provided on property, plant andigepent, including freehold bigdings but excluding lan
Depreciation is calculated on a straight line basiss to write off the net cost or other revalagtunt of eac
asset over its expected useful life to its estichagsidual value. Leasehold improvements are diggtestoverthe
period of the lease or estimated useful life, whidr is the shorter, using the straight line metfide estimate
useful life, residual value and depreciation metisoetviewed at the end of each annual reportimgpge

The following basis and method of depreciationsedi

Class of asset Method Rate

Property (excluding land) Straight line basis 2% B.a

Plant and equipment Straight line basis 10 - 25% pa
Equipment under operating lease Straight line basis  6- 20% pa

Gains or losses on disposals (being the differenteden the carrying value at the time of sale opasal anc
the proceeds received) are taken into account terméning operating profit for the year. Where tearying
value of an asset is greater thas estimated recoverable amount, it is written doimmmediately to it
recoverable amount. Repairs and maintenance kea fato account in determining operating profitemtthe
expenditure is incurred.

K. Leases
Bank is lessee

All leases entered into by the Bank and the Group are dpgrigases. Total payments made are charged
statement of comprehensive income reflecting theepaof benefits derived from the leased assets.

Bank is lessor
Finance leases are included in Loans, AdvancesCihdr Receivables from Customemsd are accounted f

under the finance method whereby income is takeactmunt over the life of the lease in proportionthe
outstanding investment balance.

Assets subject to operating leases separately disclosed in the statement of fin&pdsition, according to tt
nature of the asset. These assets are statedtairaevalued amouress accumulated depreciation. The as

are depreciated on a straight line basis over ifeeof the operating lease. Lease income is recognised
straight line basis over the term of the lease.

L. Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the cash flow statement, cadlcash equivalents comprise notes aaihs, andalances due
to and from other banks with original maturitiedess than three months.
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M. Financial assets

The Group classifies its financial assets in tHbWng categories: at fair value through profitloss, loans an
receivables, and available for sale. The di@sgion depends on the purpose for which therigial assets wel
acquired. Management determines the classificatiais financial assets at initial recognition.

a) Financial assets at fair value through profit @slo

Financial assets at fair valuerdlngh profit or loss are financial assets heldtfading. A financial asset
classified in this category if acquired principalty the purpose of selling in the short term. Datives art
also categorised as held for trading unless theylasignad as hedges. Assets in this category are clak
as current assets if expected to be settled withimonths, otherwise they are classified as noreour The
Group’s financial assets at fair value through praf loss comprise certain equity seities included unde
other financial assets in the statement of findrpmaition.

b) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are noerivative financial assets with fixed or deterntileapayments that are r
guoted in an active market. They are inlgld in current assets, except for maturities grebten 12 month
after the end of the reporting period. These asassified as nocurrent assets. The Group’s loans
receivables comprise ‘trade and other receivabdesl ‘cash and cash equivalents’ the statement ¢
financial position

c) Held to maturity investments

Held to maturity investments includes nderivative financial assets with fixed or deternfileapayment
and fixed maturities that the Group has both thenition and ability to hold tonaturity. Managemei
determines the classification of investment sewitheld to maturity at their initial recognitiomd
reassesses the appropriateness of that classificattithe end of each reporting period. Investrsentrities
held to maturity are carried at amortised coste Group’s held to maturity investments compsseurities
issued by Governments and Central Banks of resgectuntries (Treasury and Central Bank Bills)
certain debt securities included under other firdrassets in the statement of financial position.

Recognition and measurement

Regular purchases and sales of financial asseteengnised on the trade-dat¢he date on which the gro
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Investrrameténitially recogniseat fair value plus transaction co
for all financial assets not carried at fair vatheough profit or loss. Financial assets carriedaat value
through profit or loss are initially recognisedfair value, and transaction costs are expenseldeimtome
statement. Financial assets are derecognised \kenights to receive cash flows from the investradatve
expired or have been transferred and the groupttaasferred substantially all risks and reward:
ownership. Available-for-sale finantiassets and financial assets at fair value througtiit or loss ar
subsequently carried at fair value. Loans and vabdés are subsequently carried at amortised sy the
effective interest method.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the Value of the ‘financial assets at fair value tigb profit or
loss’ category are presented in the income statemighin ‘Other banking income’ in the period in igh
they arise. Dividend income from financial assetda#r value through profit or I@sis recognised in tt
income statement as part of other income whenrepls right to receive payments is established.

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset andrtbeamount reported in the balance sheet where tis a legall
enforceable right to offset the recognised amoants there is an intention to settle on a net basigalise thi
asset and settle the liability simultaneously. Tegally enforceable right must not be contingenfutore event
and nust be enforceable in the normal course of busiaedsn the event of default, insolvency or bankeyf
the company or the counterparty.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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N. Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company hassept obligation (legal or constrivet) as a result of a pe
event, it is probable that the Company will be iezplito settle the obligation, and a reliable eatarcan be mac
of the amount of the obligation. The amount recegdias a provision is the best estimate of theideraion
required to settle the present obligation at repgrtdate, taking into account the risks and undwies
surrounding the obligation. Where a provision isameed using the cash flows estimated to settlgtbsen
obligation, its carrying amount is the present gabdfithose cash flows.

When some or all of the economic benefits requiceskttle a provision are expected to be recovioed a third
party, the receivable is recognised as an assesitirtually certain that reimbursement will beceived and th
amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.

O. Employee benefits

A liability is required for benefits accruing to etoyees in respect of wages and salaries, annawad Jend lon
service leave when it is probable that settlemeihte required and they are capable of being meabsteliably.

Liabilities recognised in respect of employee bigsefkpected to be settled within 12 months, arasueed at
their nominal values using the remuneration rafgeeted to apply at the time of settlement.

Liabilities recognised in respect of employee bi#sefhich are not expected to be settled withinnidnths ar
measured as the present value of the estimatedefeash outflows to be made by the consolidateityeint
respect of services provided by employees up tortieyy date.

Post-employment benefits - defined contribution plas

A defined contribution plan is a pension plan undbich the Bank and the Group pays fixed contritmaiinto ¢
separate fund, and there ismeourse to the Bank and the Group for employett®ifund has insufficient ass
to pay employee benefits relating to service ufhéobalance sheet date.

The Bank and the Group pays contributions to piblar privately administered superannuatiplans on
mandatory, contractual or voluntary basis in respécservices rendered up to balance sheet datalltstaff
members other than non-citizen contract staff foom there is no legal obligation to do. sdhe contribution
are at the curremtite of employees' gross salary. Once the conivisithave been paid, the Bank and the G
have no further payment obligations for peatployment benefits from the date an employee seasploymer
with the Bank and the Group.

P. Income tax

Current Tax

Current tax is calculated by reference to the arhafiincome taxes payable or recoverable in respét¢he
taxable profit or tax loss for the period. It idatdated using tax rates and tax laws that have leeeacted
substantively enacted by theporting date. Current tax for current and prierigds is recognised as a liability
asset) to the extent that it is unpaid (or refutelab

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is accounted for using the balancestsliability method. Temporaryifferences are differenc
between the tax base of an asset or liability édarrying amount in the statement of financiaipon. The ta:
base of an asset or liability is the amount attgduo that asset or liability for tax purposes.

In principle, deferred tax liabilities are recognised fdrtakable temporary differences. Deferred tax asaed
recognised to the extent that it is probable thdficgent taxable amounts will be available agaimgtich
deductible temporary differences or sed tax losses and tax offsets can be utilised.d4ewy deferred tax ass
and liabilities are not recognised if the tempordifferences giving rise to them arise from theig@hirecognitior
of assets and liabilities which affects neitheatale income nor accounting profit.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measurd#ueaix rates that are expected to apply to thieg(s) when th
asset and liability giving rise to them are realise settled, based on tax rates (and tax lawg) Hthaee beer
enacted or substantively enacted by thporting date. The measurement of deferred tadilitias and asse
reflects the tax consequences that would follownftbe manner in which the Bank expects, at thertiygpdate
to recover or settle the carrying amount of itetsand liabilities.
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Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset wihery relate to income taxes levied by the samati@x authority
and the Bank intends to settle its current taxtassad liabilities on a net basis.

Current and deferred tax for the period

Current and deferred tax is recognised as an egparnisicome in the statement of comprehensive irc@xcep
when it relates to items credited or debited diyetd equity, in which case the deferred tax isakscognise!
directly in equity

Q. Foreign currency

The consolidated financial statements of the Bark presented in the currency of the primary ecou
environment in which the entity operates (its fumzal currency). For the purpose of these cddat#d financia
statements, the results and financial positiorhefBank are expressed in Papua New Guinea kinghwsithe
Bank’s functional and presentation currel

In preparing the consolidated financial statemetnggsactions in currenciegsher than the entity’s function
currency (foreign currencies) are recorded at #esrof exchange prevailing on the dates of thes#éietions. A
each balance sheet date, monetary items denomiimateckign currencies are retranslated at thesrpievailing
at the balance sheet date. Noonetary items carried at fair value that are denated in foreign currencies ¢
retranslated at the rates prevailing on the datervthe fair value was determined. Nmonetary items that a
measured in termsf historical cost in a foreign currency are notaaslatec

Foreign operations

On consolidation, the assets and liabilities of tlmmsolidated entity’s overseas operations areskated a
exchange rates prevailing at the reporting daiorire ancexpense items are translated at the average exe
rates for the period unless exchange rates fluetganificantly. Exchange differences arising, ifya are
recognised in the foreign currency translation meseand recognised in profit or loss ospmhsal of the foreig
operation

R. Share capital
Share issue costs

External costs directly attributable to the issti@ew shares are deducted from equity net of alaya@ incom:
taxes.

Dividends on ordinary shares
Dividends on ordinary shares are recognised intgduithe period in which they are declared.

Dividends for the year, declared after the balasteet date, are dealt with in the subsequent evetds

S. Asset impairment

At each reporting date, the Bankdatihe Group reviews the carrying amounts of itgitalle and intangible asse
to determine whether there is any indication tlmisé assets have suffered an impairment loss.ylfsanl
indication exists, the recoverable amount of theetiss estimatedn order to determine the extent of
impairment loss (if any). Where the asset doegeatrate cash flows that are independent from aetbszts, th
Bank and the Group estimates the recoverable anubuihé cash-generating unit to which the assedrigs.

Goodwill, intangible assets with indefinite uselives and intangible assets not yet available & are tested fi
impairment annually and whenever there is an indinathat the asset may be impaired. An impairmei
goodwill is not subsequently reversed.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value tesg of disposaknd value in use. In assessing value in use
estimated future cash flows are discounted to fresent value using a pt@x discount rate that reflects curr
maiket assessments of the time value of money andske specific to the asset for which the estimafefsiture
cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cashrgéng unit) is estimated to be less than its ¢agyanount, the
carrying amount of the asset (cagmerating unit) is reduced to its recoverable athofin impairment loss
recognised in profit or loss immediately, unless televant asset is carried at fair value, in wiielse thi
impairment loss is treated as a revaluation deereas
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Where an impairment loss subsequently reversescahging amount of the asset (cagmerating unit) i
increased to the revised estimate of its recoverabhount, but only to the extent that the increassdying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that woulee Hzeen determined had no impairment loss
recognised for the asset (capmerating unit) in prior years. A reversal of arpairment loss is recognised
profit or loss immediately, unless the redav asset is carried at fair value, in which cdse reversal of th
impairment loss is treated as a revaluation ineeas

T. Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets (and disposal groups) classifseleld for sale are measured, wigtain exceptions, at tl
lower of carrying amount and fair value less costsell.

Non-current assets and disposal groups are classifidwela for sale if their carrying amount will becogerec
principally through a sale transaction rather ttt@ough continuing use. This condition is regarded at onéy
when the asset (or disposal group) is availablenonediate sale in its present condition subjedy oo terms
that are usual and customary for such a sale andale is highly probable. Thelesaf the asset (or dispo:
group) must be expected to be completed within gear from the date of classification, except in
circumstances where sale is delayed by events@umstances outside the Company’s control and tirapany
remains commied to a sal

U. Fiji Class Shares

Fiji Class Shares issued by BSP Convertible Nd&§3 Limited, a subsidiary of the Bank incorporatm Fiji, are
classified as equity of the subsidiary.

V. Derivative financial instruments and acceptances

Forward foreign exchange contracts entered intotfading purposes are initiallyecognized at cost a
subsequently reaeasured at fair value based upon the forward r@tns and losses on such contracts are
to the statement of comprehensive income.

Acceptances comprise undertakings by the Bank la¢toup to pay bills of exchange drawn on custsmiEne
Bank and the Group expects most acceptances tetbedssimultaneously with the reimbursement frdma
customers. Customer acceptances are accountedsfaffbalance sheet transactions and are disclos:
contingent liabilities and commitments.

The Bank and the Group does not actively enterontivpade in complex forms of derivative finandiatrument:
such as currency and interest rate swaps and sption

W. Segment reporting

Segments are reported in a manner consistent atlinternal reporting provided to the Group’s clapérating
decision maker.

X. Earnings per share

Earnings per share is determined by dividihe profit or loss attributable to owners of Benk by the weighte
average number of participating shares outstandiimigng the reporting year.

Y. Comparatives

Comparative figures have been adjusted to conforahénges in presentation in the current year.
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Z. Critical accounting estimates and judgments

The application of the Group’s accounting policieguires the use of estimates and assumptionsfféireht
assumptions or estimates were applied, the reguiitues would céinge, impacting the net assets and incon
the Group.

Individually Assessed Provisions

Provisions for impairment of financial assets aised where there is objective evidence of impaitnee ar
individual or collective basis, at an amount adégua cover assessed credit related losses. Credit |@sfse
primarily from loans, but also from other credistruments such as bank acceptances, contingerittigasb
guarantees and other financial instruments.

Specific Provisions

Individually assesgk provisions are raised where there is objectividence of impairment (where the Grc
does not expect to receive all of the cash flowstrectually due). Individually assessed provisians mad:
against individual risk rated credit facilities eththan retail personal loans. The provisions are estadad base
primarily on estimates of the realisable (fair)uabf collateral taken and are measured as thereifEe betwee
a financial asset’s carrying amount and the presagline of the expectedtiure cash flows (excluding future cre
losses that have not been incurred), discountekeatinancial asset’s original effective interester Short terr
balances are not discounted.

Collective Assessed Provisions

All other loans and receivables thdd not have specifically assessed provision aresass collectively fc
impairment (Collectively Assessed Provision).

The collectively assessguovision is maintained to reduce the carrying amiai portfolios of similar loans ar
receivables to theiestimated recoverable amounts at the Balance $la¢et The Group has established a
grading system which groups loan accounts with laimiisk characteristics. A periodic credit revigs
undertaken by management on a collective and iddali bass to ascertain whether the risk grades are
appropriate in consideration of economic developgsendustry specific and borrower specific circtanges. £
provision rate applied for each risk grade segnwdnith takes into account the frequencydeffault and los
given default rates for the particular segment.

The risk grading and provision rates requireseries of estimates and judgments. Changesese tastimate
could have a direct impact on the level of provisgetermined. The amount réced to bring the collectiv
provision to the level assessed is recogniseddrstitement of comprehensive income.

Individually and collectively assessed provisions @etailed in Note 13.
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2.

Net interest income Consolidated Bank

All amounts are expressed in K’000 2015 2014 2015 2014

Interest income

Cash and balances with Central Bank 9,069 10,867 9,954 10,867

Treasury bills 88,366 67,392 88,366 67,392

Central Bank Bills 8,269 18,544 8,269 18,544

Other financial assets - Inscribed Stock 210,270 189,229 210,270 189,229

Loans, advances and other receivables from customer 782,619 658,807 763,984 658,776

Other 2,273 2,501 2,438 2,501
1,100,866 947,340 1,083,281 947,309

Less

Interest expense

Customer deposits 73,660 39,420 72,650 40,481

Other banks 12,647 14,851 12,140 14,851

Subordinated debt securities 8,308 8,308 8,308 8,308

94,615 62,579 93,098 63,640

1,006,251 884,761 990,183 883,669

Loar originationfees recognized in the Statement of Comprehensi@e in accordance with the Grou
accounting policy detailed in Note 1(e) have nowrbelassified under ‘net interest income’ as regfliiy IAS.
Comparative figures have been adjusted to conforaénges in presentation in the current year.

Fee and commission income
Fee and commission income
Product related

Trade and international related
Electronic banking related

Other

Less:
Fee and commission expenses
Agencies

International Finance Corporation fees

186,258 186,356 184,445 186,356
14,377 14,675 14,373 14,675
87,813 84,765 86,213 84,765
25,483 26,876 19,506 18,618

313,931 312,672 304,537 304,414

532 735 374 735
2,931 6,906 2,931 6,906
3,463 7,641 3,305 7,641

310,468 305,031 301,232 296,773
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4.  Other income Consolidated Bank
All amounts are expressed in K'000 2015 2014 2015 2014
Foreign exchange related 178,943 267,497 170,839 267,497
Operating lease rentals 10,104 10,146 10,104 10,146
Other 20,128 15,612 19,482 34,834

209,175 293,255 200,425 312,477

Foreign Exchange related income includes gainsl@s®ks from spot and forward contracts aaddlated foreig
currency assets.

5.  Operating expenses

Administration 126,095 111,893 108,591 104,001
Computing 48,307 46,407 47,307 46,403
Depreciation 70,007 76,707 67,607 76,707
Amortization of computer development 44,713 46,116 44,224 46,116
Non-executive Directors costs 2,249 1,772 1,713 1,445
Non-lending losses 17,496 25,891 28,328 25,056
Fixed asset impairment expenses 44,666 50,397 44,666 50,397
Premises and equipment 62,857 65,916 60,656 65,829
416,390 425,099 403,092 415,954
Staff costs
Defined contribution plans 11,463 10,262 11,079 10,262
Statutory benefit contributions (676) 7,577 (784) 7,577
Wages and salaries 209,189 202,691 199,766 202,691
Other staff benefits 54,718 57,456 52,826 57,187

274,694 277,986 262,887 277,717
691,084 703,085 665,979 693,671

6. Income tax expense

Consolidated Bank
All amounts are expressed in K'000 2015 2014 2015 2014
Current tax 260,995 247,754 257,544 244,991
Deferred tax (35,712) (40,082) (43,738) (40,092)
Current year 225,283 207,672 213,806 204,899
Income tax under provided 8,988 3,839 8,581 4,661

234,271 211,511 222,387 209,560

Tax calculated at 30% of profit before tax (2014430 218,441 216,736 218,441 216,736
Tax calculated at respective subsidiary tax rates 510 3,355 - -
Expenses not deductible for tax 5,175 477 2,825 2,406
Tax loss not recognised 2,617 1,347 - -
Deductible expenses not recognised for acdng
purposes (7,460) (14,243) (7,460) (14,243)
Income tax under provided 8,988 3,839 8,581 4,661
234,271 211,51: 222,387 209,56(
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6.

Income tax expense (continued)

Represented by: Consolidated Bank
All amounts are expressed in K'000 2015 2014 2015 2014
Provision for income tax
At 1 January (63,022) (33,395) (62,738) (33,222)
Income tax provision (260,995) (247,754) (257,544) (244,991)
Income tax under/over provided 2,228 5,257 1,277 2,919
Foreign tax paid 35,198 12,130 33,627 11,816
Tax payments made 247,586 200,740 249,210 200,740
At 31 December (39,005) (63,022) (36,168) (62,738)
Deferred taxes
Specific allowance for losses on loans, advancds an

other receivables from customers 32,603 11,173 32,118 11,173
General allowance for losses on loans, advances and

other receivables from customers 95,541 86,953 92,262 86,953
Employee related provisions 17,955 19,350 16,378 19,267
Prepaid expenses (1,396) (1,253) (1,396) (1,253)
Other provisions 14,028 22,711 25,502 26,191
Property, plant & equipment (32,676) (44,469) (31,240) (43,991)
Unrealised foreign exchange gains (3,626)  (908) (3,626) (908)
Accruals 24,960 18,120 29,292 18,120
At 31 December 147,389 111,677 159,290 115,552
Represented by: Consolidated Bank
All amounts are expressed in K'000 2015 2014 2015 2014
Deferred tax asset 199,444 161,926 195,553 161,703
Deferred tax liability (52,055) (50,249) (36,263) (46,151)
At 31 December 147,389 111,677 159,290 115,552
Deferred taxes movement 2015 2014 2015 2014
At 1 January 111,677 87,002 115,552 88,453
Current year movement 35,712 40,082 43,738 40,092
Revaluation recognised in equity 4,441 (11,048) 4,441 (11,048)
Income tax under/over provided (2,999) - (2,999) -
Other movements (1,442) (4,359) (1,442) (1,945)
At 31 December 147,389 111,677 159,290 115,552
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7. Intangible assets

7(a) Goodwill
Consolidated Bank
All amounts are expressed in K'000 2015 2014 2015 2014
At 1 January 21,271 21,271 18,267 18,267
Net movement 21,103 - 17,405 -
Gross carrying amount 42,374 21,271 35,672 18,267
7(b) Computer development costs
At 1 January 89,103 133,198 85,943 133,198
Additions 34,511 20,368 33,257 18,788
Disposals (11,049) (18,347) (11,047) (19,927)
Amortisation expense (44,713) (46,116) (44,224) (46,116)
At 31 December 67,852 89,103 63,929 85,943
Total intangible assets 110,226 110,374 99,601 104,210
8. Investment in subsidiaries
All amounts are expressed in K’000
Principal Place of incorporation and
Name of Subsidiary activity operation Balance of Investment
Ownership % 2015 2014
BSP Capital Limited Share brokerage/Fund
Management/Capital
Raising PNG 100% 2,000 8,959
BSP Life Limited Life Insurance Fiji 100% 87,599 87,653
BSP Convertible Notes Limited  Capital Rising Fiji 100% 371 317
BSP Finance Limited Credit Institution PNG 100% 27,958 11,706
Bank of South Pacific Tonga Ltd  Bank Tonga 100% 71,610 -
Bank South Pacific (Samoa) Ltd Bank Samoa 98.7% 70,331 -
At 31 December 259,869 108,635

During the year the Bank acquired two subsidiaagpart of its acquisition of interests in regiobahks (refer to
note 40).

Provision of impairment of the Investment in BSP Caital Limited

The directors determined that the investment in BE3Pital Limited hadbeen materially impaired as the carry
amount of the investment was greater thamés book value. As of the reporting date, the itment amount i
written down to its net book value.

Represented by:

All amounts are expressed in K’000 2015 2014
Opening Balance 8,959 8,959
Additional capital 4,109 -
Provision for Impairment (11,068) -
At 31 December 2,000 8,959
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10.

Investment in Associates and Joint Ventures

Place of
Joint Venture/ Principal incorporation Proportion of ownership and
Entity Associate activity and operation voting power held
2015 2014
Suva Central Ltd Joint Venture  Property rental Fiji 50%* 50%*
Richmond Ltd Joint Venture H_otel operation Fiji &0**,5090***  61.3%**, 50%***
Williams and Gosling Ltd Associate Fc:s/:/%rrléing Fiji 27.7%* 27.7%*
Carpark Ltd Joint Venture  Property PNG _ 33.33%
Malagan Ltd Joint Venture  Property PNG 33.33%

The investments above are accounted for usinggtigyemethod in the consolidated financial statetgcaxcept for Carpark Ltd
and Malagan Ltd which are accounted for at coss iespairment. Carpark Ltd and Malagan Ltd intereste disposed off

during the year.

*Both ownership and voting power heétibwnership, ***voting power held.

Consolidated Bank
All amounts are expressed in K'000 2015 2014 2015 2014
Associates
Investment in associate - equity 79,718 72,900 - -
Translation movement 6,553 (3,415) - -
Share of profit for the year 1,598 10,233 - -
Net investment at 31 December 87,869 79,718 - -
Summarised financial information of associate:
Total assets 147,013 180,637 - -
Total liabilities (41,380) (34,705) - -
Net assets 105,633 145,932 - -
Net profit 10,341 17,085 - -
Share of associate’s profit 1,598 10,233 - -
Joint Ventures & Associates
Share of associate’s net assets - equity 87,869 79,718 - -
Shares held in jointly owned entity - at cost less
impairment 29,447 38,671 29,447 38,520
Total investments in associates and joint ventures 117,316 118,389 29,447 38,520
Cash and balances with Central Bank Consolidated Bank
All amounts are expressed in K'000 2015 2014 2015 2014
Notes, coins and cash at bank 468,712 479,818 403,269 386,655
Balances with Central Bank other than statutoryodép 733,754 875,651 607,587 875,651
Total cash and balances with Central Bank 1,202,466 1,355,469 1,010,856 1,262,306
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11. Treasury and Central Bank bills

Consolidated Bank
All amounts are expressed in K'000 2015 2014 2015 2014
Treasury and Central Bank bills — face value 2541, 2,210,743 2,539,719 2,210,743
Discount for interest receivable (38,462) (27,506) (38,463) (27,506)
At 31 December 2,503,109 2,183,237 2,501,256 2,183,237

Treasury and Central Bank bills are debt securiisged by Central BanksThese bills are classified as assets
for trading and carried at fair value by the Insw@business and assets held to maturity by th&iBgbusinesses.

12. Amounts due from other banks

Items in the course of collection 80,076 85,80z 80,077 85,80¢
Placements with other banks 615,204 294,85( 492,323  294,85(
At 31 December 695,280 380,653 572,400 380,653

13. Loans, advances and other receivables from costers

Overdrafts 583,436 792,580 557,746 792,580
Lease financing 245,153 273,194 230,487 273,194
Term loans 7,059,098 4,821,727 6,710,903 4,792,132
Mortgages 1,137,938 1,157,855 1,110,619 1,157,328
Policy loans 42,761 39,678 - -

Gross loans, advance and other receivables due from

customers net of reserved interest 9,068,386 7,085,034 8,609,755 7,015,234
Less allowance for losses on loans, advances &ed ot

receivables from customers (446,872) (328,037) (428,528) (327,087)
At 31 December 8,621,514 6,756,997 8,181,227 6,688,147

The spread of the loans are detailed in the mgtanglysis table on Note 34. The loans are wetdified across
various sectors and are further analysed on Nate 33

Lease financing

The Group and the bank provide lease financing bvoad range of clients to support financing needscquiring
movable assets such as motor vehicles and plantguigment. Finance lease receivables are includih loans,
advances and other receivables from customersrarehalysed as follows:
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13.

Loans, advances and other receivables from costers (continued)

Consolidated aBk
All amounts are expressed in K'000 2015 2014 2015 2014
Gross investment in finance lease receivable
Not later than 1 year 56,733 20,523 49,816 20,523
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years 215,91 282,168 201,049 282,168
272,644 302,691 250,865 302,691
Unearned future finance income
Not later than 1 year (4,963) (14,291) (1,803) (14,291)
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years (3,52 (15,206) (18,575) (15,206)
(27,491) (29,497) (20,378)  (29,497)
Present value of minimum lease payment receivable 245,153 273,194 230,487 273,194
Present value of minimum lease payment receivabdmalysed as follows:
Not later than 1 year 51,770 20,523 48,013 20,523
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years 193,383 252,671 182,474 252,671
At 31 December 245,153 273,194 230,487 273,194
Provision for impairment
Movement in allowance for losses on loans, advaaods
other receivables from customers:
Balance at 1 January 328,037 277,081 327,087 275,788
Net new and increase provisioning 74,410 62,096 20m, 62,096
Loans written off against provisions / (Write baufk
provisions no longer required) 44,425 (11,140) 30,2 (10,797)
At 31 December 446,872 328,037 428,528 327,087
Provision for impairment is represented by
Collective provision 329,641 290,200 321,468 289,845
Individually assessed or specific provision 117,231 37,837 107,060 37,242
At 31 December 446,872 328,037 428,528 327,087
Loan impairment expense
Net collective provision funding (51,406) (50,812) (48,656) (50,812)
Net new and increase individually assessed praviisip (23,004) (11,284) (22,545) (11,284)
Total new and increase provisioning (74,410) (62,096) (71,201) (62,096)
Recoveries during the year 60,155 33,204 59,713 2033,
Net write back/(write off) (75,650) (47,904) (7596 (47,904)
At 31 December (89,905) (76,796) (86,657)  (76,796)
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14. Property, plant and equipment

Consolidated Bank
All amounts are expressed in K'000 2015 2014 2015 2014
Carrying value
Capital Work in Progress 158,621 180,694 151,589 176,719
Premises 578,832 546,600 527,023 522,769
Accumulated depreciation (109,247) (92,923) (104,351) (85,812)
469,585 453,677 422,672 436,957
Equipment 281,633 256,832 209,931 221,749
Accumulated depreciation (188,379) (163,838) (151,684) (140,691)
93,254 92,994 58,247 81,058
At 31 December 721,460 727,365 632,508 694,734
Assets held for sale (premises) (35,135) (65,052) (35,135) (65,052)
Net assets at 31 December 686,325 662,313 597,373 629,682

Reconciliation of carrying value of property, plant& equipment is set out below:

Capital Work in Progress

At 1 January 180,694 117,253 176,719 113,744
Additions 127,472 172,826 112,205 169,297
Transfers (149,545) (109,385) (137,335) (106,322)
At 31 December 158,621 180,694 151,589 176,719
Premises

At 1 January 453,677 385,195 436,957 368,091
Additions 77,426 90,108 66,934 89,860
Disposals (41,383) (35,573)  (41,383) (35,573)
Depreciation expense (27,535) (22,882) (26,330) (22,250)
Revaluation gains/ (losses) 7,400 36,829 (13,506) 36,829
At 31 December 469,585 453,677 422,672 436,957
Equipment

At 1 January 92,994 120,912 81,058 107,788
Additions 50,174 29,192 21,672 26,097
Disposals (10,928) (6,983) (10,928) (6,092)
Depreciation expense (38,986) (50,127) (33,555) (46,735)
At 31 December 93,254 92,994 58,247 81,058
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14. Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Consolidated aBk

All amounts are expressed in K'000 2015 2014 2015 2014
Assets subject to operating lease

Carrying value

Aircraft 130,122 123,326 130,122 123,326
Accumulated depreciation (77,265)  (69,543) (77,265) (69,543)
At 31 December 52,857 53,783 52,857 53,783
Reconciliation of carrying value of aircraft is setout below:

Aircraft
At 1 January 53,783 61,505 53,783 61,505
Depreciation (7,722) (7,722) (7,722) (7,722)
Revaluation net increase 6,796 - 6,796 -
At 31 December 52,857 53,783 52,857 53,783
Future minimum lease receipts

Not later than 1 year 10,104 10,104 10,104 10,104
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years 5219 15,323 5,219 15,323
At 31 December 15,323 25,427 15,323 25,427

The carrying amount of land and buildings and afitdnad they been recognised undei cost model are ¢

follows:
Freehold land 25,987 24,301 25,987 24,301
Buildings 132,727 108,844 128,935 108,844
Aircraft 21,834 26,396 21,834 26,396
At 31 December 180,548 159,541 176,756 159,541

Freehold land and buildings carried at fair value

Independent valuations of the Bank’s land and Ingisl were performed by Countrywide Realty Limitedi & he
Professional Valuers of PNG Limited to determire filir value of the land and buildings. The valo@asi, which
conform to International Valuation Standards, wegtermined by reference to capitalization of theamal
income stream approach on the Market Value babis.récent valuation was dated 31 December 2014.

Assets subject to operating lease — aircraft

An independent valuation of the Bank’s aircraftswwarformed by Ascend Advisory to determine theemnir
realistic fair value for each of the aircraft. TWeduation, which conforms to International ValuatiBtandards,
takes into consideration the current global mavkeiations for the specific types of aircrafts. eTéffective date of
the valuation was 31 March 2014 and was extrapblat@1 December 2015 based on expected fair vakrethe
aircraft lease contracts.
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15.

16.

17.

18.

19,

Investment properties

Consolidated Bank
All amounts are expressed in K'000 2015 2014 2015 2014
Opening net book value 70,684 65,429 - -
Additions 10,325 4,856
Translation movement 5,736 (3,053) - -
Gain on revaluation 14,274 3,452 - -
At 31 December 101,019 70,684 - -
Other financial assets
Securities — held to-maturity:
Inscribed stock — issued by Central Bank 2,227,842,297,935 2,074,124 2,188,067
Financial assets carried at fair value through proit and loss:
Equity securities 81,079 63,714 - -
At 31 December 2,308,926 2,361,649 2,074,124 2,188,067
Other assets
Funds in transit and other assets 115,258 208,069 107,147 187,035
Accrued interest income 83,814 78,311 78,763 78,311
Intercompany account - - 4,614 6,478
Outstanding premiums 30,831 21,447 - -
Inventory 6,896 6,830 - -
Prepayments 15,311 12,224 14,706 12,224
Accounts receivable 3,025 7,767 1,328 1,045
At 31 December 255,135 334,648 206,558 285,093
Amounts due to other banks
Vostro account balances 39,185 201,192 38,789 201,179
Other borrowings 305,161 58,700 306,088 58,700
At 31 December 344,346 259,892 344,877 259,879
Customer deposits
On demand and short term deposits 11,589,310,725,060 11,390,548 10,765,038
Term deposits 3,005,997 1,983,323 2,857,748 2,039,517
At 31 December 14,595,374 12,708,383 14,248,296 12,804,555

The majority of the amounts are due to be settlighinvtwelve months of the balance sheet date awslin the
maturity analysis table on note 34. The deposégaversified across industries and region.
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20. Subordinated debt securities

At 31 December, there K75.525 million of debt securities outstanding, esfed to be settled more than 12 mo
after the balance sheet date. The notes weredigBureng 2009with a maturity date in 2019, and interest is pas
semi-annually at 11% per annum. They are valuedratrtised costThere have been no defaults of interest or ¢
breaches with respect to these debt securities #sae.

21. Other liabilities

Consolidated Bank
All amounts are expressed in K'000 Note 2015 2014 2015 2014
Creditors and accruals 115,785 94,804 95,900 66,925
Items in transit and all other liabilities 269,958 175,849 257,352 190,749
Policy liabilities 39(b) 563,441 473,753 - -
Premiums received in advance 5,969 293 - -
Outstanding claims 12,462 10,534 - -
Claims incurred but not reported (IBNR) 1,564 1,315 - -
At 31 Decembe 96¢,17¢ 75€,54¢€ 355,252 257,674
22. Other provisions
Consolidated Bank

All amounts are expressed in K'000 2015 2014 2015 2014
Staff related 62,205 67,665 55,274 62,547
Provision for non-lending loss 47,762 41,691 47,743 41,666
Provisions — other 33,731 43,588 29,518 43,587

143,69€ 152,94 132,53E 147,80(
Staff related provisions:
At 1 January 67,665 62,191 62,547 57,170
Provisions charge 34,969 36,203 30,535 36,106
Payouts (40,429) (30,729) (37,808) (30,729)
At 31 December 62,205 67,665 55,274 62,547

23. Ordinary shares
Number of

Number of shares in '000s, Book value in K'000 shares Book value
At 31 December 2013/1 January 2014 468,429 381,498
Share buyback (292) (2,201)
At 31 December 2014 / 1 January 2015 468,137 379,297
Share buyback (612) (4,676)
At 31 December 467,525 374,621

In May 2014, the Directors agreed to introduce arstbuyback scheme of up to K15 million. The shargback
commenced in July 2014 and was extended to sudhihen the allocated K15 million buyback was waitisor if
the Board wishes, anytime before that.
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23.

24,

Ordinary shares (continued)

Consolidated Bank
All amounts are expressed in K'000 2015 2014 2015 2014
Earnings per ordinary share
Net Profit attributable to shareholders (K'000) 531,879 507,339 505,749 512,892
Weighted average number of ordinary shares in‘088) 467,831 468,278 467,831 468,278
Basic and diluted earnings per share (expresstzmta) 113.7 108.3 108.1 109.5

Basicearning per ordinary share is calculated by dividing theprefit attributable to shareholders by the weégt
average number of ordinary shares in issue duhiegéar. Bank of South Pacific Limited has notdiki potential
ordinary shares. Consequently, basic earningsmoérary share equals diluted earnings per share.

Dividend paid on ordinary shares
Interim ordinary dividend (2015: 22.5 toea; 2014t@6€a)
Final ordinary dividend (2014: 56 toea; 2013: déd)

Retained earnings & other reserves
Retained earnings

At 1 January

Net profit for the year

Dividend paid

Disposal of assets — Asset revaluation
Prior year consolidation adjustment

BSP Life policy reserve

At 31 December

Other reserves comprise

Revaluation reserve

Capital reserve

Equity component of Fiji Class Shares
General reserve

Exchange reserve

Movement in reserves for the year:

Revaluation reserve

At 1 January

Asset revaluation increment

Transfer assets revaluation reserve to retainedregs
Deferred tax on disposal of properties

Deferred tax on asset revaluation — prior year
Deferred tax on asset revaluation — current year

At 31 December

105,938 93,665 105,218 93,665
263,872 215476 262,021 215,476
369,810 309,141 367,239 309,141

1,219,436 1,035,290 1,183,505 991,368
531,879 507,339 505,749 512,892

(369,810) (309,141) (367,239)  (309,141)

22,103 12,441 22,103 12,441
- (2,438) - -
(4,118)  (24,055)  (4,118) (24,055)

1,399,490 1,219,436 1,340,000 1,183,505

166,878 166,230 163,023 166,230
635 635 635 635
21,578 21,578 - -

31,048 26,930 31,048 26,930
34,926 (13,913) 21,663 (10,249)

255,065 201,460 216,369 183,546

166,230 170,103 166,230 170,103
21,450 44,330 14,304 44,330

(22,103)  (12,441)  (22,103) (12,441)

6,631 - 6,631 -

- (23,051) - (23,051)

33  (12,711)  (2,039) (12,711)
166,878  166,23C 163,023 166,230
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24. Retained earnings & other reserves (continued)

25.

Consolidated Bank
All amounts are expressed in K'000 2015 2014 2015 2014
Capital reserve
At 1 January 635 635 635 635
At 31 December 635 635 635 635
General reserve
At 1 January 26,930 2,875 26,930 2,875
BSP Life policy reserve 4,118 24,055 4,118 24,055
At 31 December 31,048 26,930 31,048 26,930
Exchange reserve
At 1 January (13,913) 10,441  (10,249) 7,833
Movement during the year 48,839 (24,354) 31,912 (18,082)
At 31 December 34,926 (13,913) 21,663 (10,249)

Equity component of convertible notes

On 20 April 2010, the Group issued 3,064,967 Fiji Dollars (FdBhominated mandatory convertible notes thre
its wholly owned subsidiary BSP Convertible Notésiited (BSP CN) at an issue price of FID5.25 (KY [3€r note.

The notes mandatorily converted toi RJass Shares on 20 April 2013 based on a corersitio of 1.1. Key right

of Fiji Class Shareholders are as follows:

(i) The right to receive dividend equal to the amodintivdadend to be paid on BSP Ordinary Share.

(i) The same voting rights as a BSP Dady Share and effected through a special votimgres held by th

Chairman of BSP.

(iii) The Fiji Class Share may be exchanged on a orenéobasis into BSP Ordinary Shares at a subsedatnant
at the option of BSP on the occurrence of certegsgibed events.

Contingent liabilities and commitments
Off balance sheet financial instruments
Standby letters of credit

Guarantees and indemnities issued

Trade letters of credit

Commitments to extend credit

Legal Proceedings

Consolidated Bank
2015 2014 2015 2014
31,164 24,797 31,164 24,797
304,086 293,853 299,857 292,489
46,139 20,091 45,255 20,091
1,224,744 1,009,943 1,223,746 1,008,952
1,606,133 1,348,684 1,600,022 1,346,329

A number of legal proceedings against the Bankthadsroupwere outstanding as at 31 December 2015. Bas
information available at 31 December 2015, the Bamtt the Group estimates a contingent liabilityK8f9 million

(2014: K37.4 million) in respect of these proceggin
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25. Contingent liabilities and commitments (contined)

Statutory deposits with Central Banks Consolidated Bank

All amounts are expressed in K'000 2015 2014 2015 2014
Cash reserve requirement: requisiéserve requirements

respective countries 1,359,606 1,251,582 1,341,6501,251,582

Commitments for capital expenditure
Amounts with firm commitments, and not reflectedtlie

accounts 29,50¢ 74,10¢ 20,63. 65,31f

Operating lease commitments

Not later than 1 year 22,466 19,918 22,466 19,704

Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years 36,421 38,116 36,421 37,486

Later than 5 years 16,797 15,621 16,797 15,621
75,684 73,655 75,684 72,811

26. Fiduciary activities

The Group especiallthrough BSP Capital Limited conducts investmentfamnagement, stock broking and o
fiduciary activities as responsible entity, trusteestodian or manager for investment funds anstdruncluding
superannuation. These funds are not consolidetdtie Group does not have direct or indirect chntWhere the
funds incurs liabilities in respect of these atigg, and the primary obligation is incurred inaagency capacity, fc
the fund or clients rather than its own accounight of indemiity exists against the assets of the applicable
or trust. As these assets are sufficient to ctweliabilities and it is therefore not probablattthe Group will b
required to settle the liabilities, the investmentthe assets and liabiliseof these activities are not included in
consolidated financial statements.

27. Directors and executive remuneration

Directors remuneration

Directors of the company received remunerationuidiclg benefits during 2015 as detailed below:

All amounts are in Kina Total remuneration
Meetings
attended / total Appointed/
Name of Director held (Resigned) 2015 2014
Sir K. Constantinou, OBE 8/8 - 293,105 277,759
T. E. Fox, OBE 7/8 - 251,351 243,492
Dr. . Temu 7/8 - 133,966 123,904
C. C. Procter - (24/05/14) - 144,011
Sir N. Bogan 5/8 - 139,000 127,083
R. Fleming, CSM* 8/8 - - -
G. Aopi, CBE 8/8 - 147,872 126,934
G. Robb, OAM 7/8 - 376,039 363,283
F. Talao 8/8 - 137,950 115,121
E. B Gangloff 7/8 - 142,119 116,771
A. Mano 7/8 29/08/14 122,855 26,250

Directors Sir Kostas Constantinou, OBE, Frd¢ianek Talao and Geoffrey John Robb retired by iatain
accordance with Clause 15.3 of the Company’s Cutistn and being eligible, offered themselves f@election
by the shareholders on 25 May 2015 Annual Generstiig. Augustine Mano was elected by the sharehsla
the same Annual Meeting on 25 May 2015.
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27.

Directors and executive remuneration (continued

Non-executive Board Members of the Boar@oenstantinou, Fox and Robb received an allowand€66f000 a:
Directors of BSP Capital Ltd which forms part oétGroup.

* Managing Director / Chief Executive Officer reees no fees for his services as Director duringydes. Otler
members of BSP executive management who serveredals of subsidiaries of BSP Group receive ng fee
their services as Director.

Executive remuneration

The number of employees or former employees whosenie from the Bank was equal or greater tha
K100,000 during the year, are classified in incdraads of K10,000 as follows:

Remuneration 2015 2014 Remuneration 2015 2014 Remuneration 2015 2014
K’'000 No. No. K’000 No. No. K’000 No. No.

100 - 110 36 35 370 - 380 - 1 700 - 710 2 -
110 - 120 29 25 380 - 390 3 - 710 - 720 2 1
120 - 130 21 22 390 - 400 0 5 720 - 730 2 -
130 - 140 17 25 410 - 410 1 2 730 - 740 1

140 - 150 17 16 410 - 420 - 2 750 — 760 -

150 - 160 12 8 420 - 430 2 1 770 - 780 1 1
160 - 170 7 9 430 — 440 - 1 780 — 790 - 8
170 - 180 13 7 440 - 450 2 2 800-810 o -

180 — 190 9 2 450 — 460 1 1 820 — 830 2 -
190 - 200 3 2 460 — 470 4 1 830 — 840 - 2
200 - 210 3 4 490 - 500 - - 850 — 860 1 3
210 - 220 3 3 500 - 510 - 1 880 — 890 1 -
220 - 230 4 4 510 - 520 1 - 890 — 900 - 1
230 - 240 2 7 520 - 530 2 - 910 - 920 1 -
240 - 250 2 8 540 - 550 2 1 950 - 960 - 1
250 - 260 5 5 560 — 570 5 1 980 - 990 1 -
260 - 270 4 2 570 - 580 1 1 1090 - 1100 1 -

270 - 280 8 5 590 - 600 3 2 1100 - 1100

280 — 290 8 8 600 — 610 1 2 1170 - 1180 1 1
290 - 300 3 3 610 - 620 3 2 1190 -1200 - 1
300 - 310 3 2 620 — 630 - 4 1230 -1240 - 1
310 - 320 3 5 630 — 640 2 2 1270 - 1280 - 1
320 - 330 4 3 640 — 650 1 2 1630 - 1640 2 1
330 - 340 3 1 650 — 660 2 1 1660 - 1670 1 -
340 - 350 3 1 660 — 670 2 1 1730 - 1740 1 -
350 - 360 1 2 680 - 690 3 3 1840 - 1850 -

360 — 370 5 5 690 - 700 3 2 3560 - 3570 1 1
Total 296 291
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27. Directors & executive remuneration (continued)

The specified executives during the year were:

Robin Fleming, CSM Robert Loggia Haroon Ali Richard Borysiewicz
Johnson Kalo Peter Beswick Paul Thornton EdwardaRuh
Aho Baliki, OBE Giau Duruba Rohan George Clops$te Michaud

Specified executives’ remuneration in aggregate (KQ00)

Primary Post-employment )
Non- Prescribed Equity  Other
Year Salary Bonus monetary Super  benefits Other  options benefits Total
2015 11,478 2,443 397 222 - - - 375 14,915
2014 11,302 3,128 207 193 - - - 710 15,540
28 Reconciliation of operating cash flow Consolidated Bank
All amounts are expressed in K'000 2015 2014 2015 2014

Reconciliation of operating profit after tax to opeating cash flow before changes
in operating assets

Operating profit after tax 531,879 507,339 505,749 512,892
Add: Tax Expense 234,271 211,511 222,387 209,560
Operating profit before income tax 766,150 718,850 728,136 722,452
Major non cash amounts

Depreciation 74,243 80,731 67,607 76,707
Amortisation of deferred acquisition and computer

development costs 44,713 46,116 44 224 46,116
Net (profit)/loss on sale of fixed assets (2,621) 1,210 (2,621) 1,210
Movement in forex income accrual 45,625(13,344) 44,601 (10,461)
Movement in provision for doubtful debts 89,905 112,076 86,657 112,076
Movement in payroll provisions (5,460) 2,821 (7,273) 2,821
Impairment of subsidiary - - 11,068 -
Impairment of fixed assets 44,666 50,397 44,666 50,397
Net effect of other accruals (13,500) 6,047 (28,669) (10,571)
Operating cash fow before changes in operating asse 1,043,721 1,004,90. 988 39€ 990,74°

Cash and cash equivalents
For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cadltash equivalents comprise the following balang#s less
than 90 days maturity.

Cash and balances with Central Banks (note 10) 021486 1,355,469 1,010,856 1,262,306
Amounts due from other banks (note 12) 695,28(B80,653 572,400 380,653
Amounts due to other banks (note 18) (344,346) (259,892) (344,877) (259,879)

1,553,400 1,476,230 1,238,379 1,383,080
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29 Segment information

Bank of South Pacific Limited and Group comprisasiaussegments, these being the provision of bankingces
and products, stock broking and insurance servemed asset financing. For managemeurposes, segme
information determination is based on the riskoined with the provision of core banking services @roducts an
the Bank and Group’s management reporting systdm. main business lines for management purposesaae
banking sgments of retail bank, wholesale bank which inctuderporate and paramount strategic business
insurance operations in Fiji, and BSP Capital'ktbroking and fund management activities. The BahSoutt
Pacific Limited and Group’s business segments dpera Papua New Guinea, Fiji, Solomon Islar@sok Islands
Tonga and Samoalnter segment adjustments reflects eliminatiatries in respect of inter segment income
expense allocations included funds transfer pricing

All amounts are expressed in K'000

PNG PNG PNG Adjust

Retall Wholesale Bank Non Non Bank Inter

Bank Bank Other PNG Bank Entities Segments  Total
Analysis by segments
Year ended 31 December 2015
Net interest income 234,523 443,477 209,970 112,624 5,657 - 1,006,251
Other income 252,402 139,125 3,540 119,780 7,468 (2,672) 519,643
Net insurance income - - - - 21,245 - 21,245
Total operating income 486,925 582,602 213,510 232,404 34,370 (2,672) 1,547,139
Operating expenses (288,946) (64,837) (206,598) (128,324) (15,102) 12,723  (691,084)
Impairment expenses (41,874) (24,324) (6,912) (14,194) (2,601) - (89,905)
Profit before income tax 156,105 493,441 - 89,886 16,667 10,051 766,150
Income tax (47,735) (154,270) - (23,063) (9,203) - (234,271)
Net profit after income tax 108,370 339,171 - 66,823 7,464 10,051 531,879

Year ended 31 December 2014

Net interest income 188,478 454,082 145,849 95,260 31 1,061 884,761
Other income 256,047 219,457 44,702 89,012 8,572 (19,504) 598,286
Net insurance income - - - - 15,684 - 15,684
Total operating income 444,525 673,539 190,551 184,272 24,287 (18,443) 1,498,731
Operating expenses (376,859) (55,361) (153,472)(108,072) (10,847) 1,526 (703,085)
Impairment expenses (20,986) 5,685 (37,079) (24,416) - - (76,796)
Profit before income tax 46,680 623,863 - 51,784 13,440 (16,917) 718,850
Income tax (12,759) (183,498) - (13,303) (1,951) - (211,511)
Net profit after income tax 33,921 440,365 - 38481 11,489 (16,917) 507,339
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30. Related party transactions

Related parties are considered to be enterprisésdoriduals with whom the Bank and the Group ipexsally
related because either they or the Bank are insitipo to significantly influence the outcome ofnsaction
entered into with the &k and the Group, by virtue of being able to aadntlominate or participate in a fiducie
capacity, in decisiomaking functions or processes. The Bank and theusiconducted transactions with
following classes of related parties during theryea

= Directors and/or parties in which the director kigmificant influence

= Key management personnel and other staff and/diepain which the individual officer has signifid:
influence

A number of banking transactions are entered inth these elated parties in the normal course of business
include loans, deposits, property rentals, shanesfers and foreign currency transactions. Theseactions ai
carried out on commercial terms and market rdesthe year ended 31 December 20ddlances and transactic
of accounts for Directors, including companies inieh directorships were held by BSP directors, vaeréollows:

All amounts are expressed in K'000 2015 2014
Customer Deposits

Opening balances 142,812 192,446
Net movement (39,872)  (49,634)
Closing balance 102,940 142,812
Interest paid 1,967 2,350
Loans, advances and other receivables from custonser

Opening balances 599,994 384,320
Loans issued 73,272 304,949
Interest 43,000 35,721
Charges 6,656 4,451
Loan repayments (103,937) (129,447)
Closing balance 618,985 599,994

Incentive-based transactions are provided for staff. Suahsactions include marginal discounts on rates,
specific fee concessions. These incentives aralynpercentagdsased on market rates and fees, and as suct
accounts are always subject to underlying marlestds in interest rates and fees. As at 31 Dece@iEs staff
account balances were as follows:

All amounts are expressed in K'000 2015 2014
Housing loans 87,090 54,711
Other loans 34,929 30,889

122,019 85,600

Cheque accounts 8,920 10,630
Foreign currency accounts 1 487
Savings accounts 11,399 11,023

20,320 22,140
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31. Bank operations, risks and strategies in usinfinancial instruments

All business operations must deal with a varietpmérational and financial risks. The busineswitiets of
a bank expose it to very critical and specific siskhich are principally related tbe Bank and the Grouy
primary financial intermediary role in the finankcimarkets, including the use of financial instruns
including derivatives. These market risks (riskaafadvance event in the financial markets that reayli
in loss of earnings) include liquidity risk, foreigxchange risk, interest rate risk and credit risk

The Bank and the Group accepts deposits from custoat both fixed and floating rates and for ves
periods and seeks to earn above average interegin®idy nvesting these funds in high quality ass
These margins are achieved and increased by cdasoli shorterm funds and lending for longer peric
at higher rates whilst maintaining sufficient lidity to meet all claims that might fall due.

The Bank and the Group also seeks to optimise its intenesgins by obtaining above average returns
of provisions, through lending to commercial anthiteborrowers with a range of credit standing.
addition to directly advancing funds to borrowdtse Bank and the Group also enters into guaranteg
other commitments such as letters of credit, paréorce bonds, and other bonds.

The Bank and the Group also enters into transaxti@nominated in foreign currenciedhis activity
generally requies the Bank and the Group to take foreign currgrositions in order to exploit short te
movements in the foreign currency markdthe Board places limits on the size of these pmssti The
Bank and the Group also has a policy of using tffsg conmitments for foreign exchange contra
effectively minimising the risk of loss due to adse movements in foreign currencies.

Risk in the Bank and the Group is managed througlystem of delegated limits. These limits set
maximum level of riskhiat can be assumed by each operational unit arBlathle and the Group as a whc
The limits are delegated from the Board of Direstir executive management and hence to the resp
operational managers.

The risk management framework establishalss, responsibilities and accountabilities of fh&set ant
Liability Committee, the Credit Committee, the Ogtgwnal Risk Committee and the Executive Commi
the specific management committees charged withrdbponsibility for ensuring the Bankdthe Grouj
has appropriate systems, policies and proceduregssure, monitor and report on risk managemehe
framework also includes policies and procedureschvhietail formal feedback processes to tl
management committees, to the Audit, Riski Compliance Committee of the Board, and ultityetethe
Board of Directors.

32. Capital adequacy

The Bank and the Group is required to comply wislniaus prudential standards issued by the Bar
Papua New Guinea (BPNG), the official auihofor the prudential supervision of banks anditar
financial institutions in Papua New Guinea. Addilly, subsidiaries and branches in Fgiolomor
Islands, Cooks Islands, Samoa and Tonga are relqtiredhere to prudential standards issuedhey
Reserve Bank of Fiji (RBF), Central Bank of Solomstands (CBSIl) The Financial Superviso
Commission (FSC), Central Bank of Samoa (CBS) armalioNal Reserve Bank of Tonga RBT)
respectively. One of the most critical prudensigindards is the pdal adequacy requirement. All bar
are required to maintain at least the minimum atatde measure of capital to riskeighted assets
absorb potential losses. The BPNG follows the entidl guidelines set by the Bank of Internatic
Settlementsinder the terms of the Basel Accord. The BPNGsexViprudential standard 1/2003, Caj
Adequacy, prescribes ranges of overall capitabsath measure whether a bank is under, adequatelgll
capitalised, and also applies the leverage capitd. The Bank and the Group complies with
prevailing prudential requirements for total calpétad leverage capital. As at 31 December 2@i& Bant
and the Group’s total capital adequacy ratio andriege capital ratio satisfied the capital adequaitgria
for a ‘well-capitalised’ bankThe minimum capital adequacy requirements set ndeuthe standard ai
Tier 1 8%, total risk based capital ratio 12% amelleverage ratio 6%.

The measure of capital used for the purposes afgmtial supenrdion is referred to as base capital. T
base capital varies from the balance of capitaivehon the statement of financial position and isienag
of tier 1 capital (core) and tier 2 capital (suppéntary). Tier 1 capital is obtained by deducfirggn equity
capital and audited retained earnings (or lossagngible assets including deferred tax assetger 2
capital cannot exceed the amount of tier 1 capiad, can include subordinated loan capital, sptiisse
revaluation reserves, ungited profits (or losses) and a small percentaggemieral loan loss provisior
The leverage capital ratio is calculated as Tieafital divided by total assets on the balancetshee
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32.Capital adequacy (continued)

33.

Risk weighted assets are derived from on-balaneetsand offealance sheet assets. On balance
assets are weighted for credit risk by applyingghigngs (0, 20, 50 and 100 per cent) accordingsio
classification criteria set by the BPNG. Off-balarsheet exposures are ng&ighted in the same way af
converting them to on-balance sheet credit equinalesing BPNG specified credit conversion factors.
The Bank and the Group's capital adequacy lee is

follows:
Balance sheet / notional
amount Risk-weighted amount
All amounts are expressed in K'000 2015 2014 2015 2014
Balance sheet assets (net of provisions)
Currency 2,562,072 2,607,051 - -
Loans, advances and other receivables
from customers 8,621,514 6,756,997 6,693,220 59326,
Investments and short term securities 4,812,035 444886 - -
All other assets 2,200,682 1,907,573 1,415,736 1RO
Off balance sheet items 1,606,133 1,348,684 271,380 194,548
Total 19,802,436 17,165,191 8,380,336 7,223,322
Capital Ratios Capital (K'000) Capital Adequacy Ratio (%)
2015 2014 2015 2014
a) Tier 1 capital 1,603,825 1,412,838 19.0% 19.4%
Tier 1 + Tier 2 capital 1,952,807 1,746,292 3.12% 24.0%
b) Leverage Capital Ratio 8.9% 9.0%

Credit risk and asset quality

The Bank incurs risk with regard to loans, advareed other receivables due from customers and
monies or investments held with financial instibm. Credit risk is the likelihood of future fir@al loss
resulting from the failure of clients or countgairties to meet contractual obligations to the Ban#l the
Group as they fall due.

Credit risk is managed by analysitige risk spread across various sectors of the espramd by ensurin
risk is diversely spread by personal and owrtial customer. Individual exposures are measusng
repayment performance, reviews and statisticalnigeies. Comprehensive credit standards and api
limits have been formulated and approved by thedi€@ommittee. The Credit Committee (whiodports
to the Board through the Executive and Chief ExgeuOfficer) is responsible for the development
implementation of credit policy and loan portfolieview methodology. The Credit Committee is thel
arbiter of risk management and loan risk conceotmat

As indicated in Accounting Policy G koans and provision for loan impairment, the Bank ¢he Grou|
has in place processes that identify, assess aritbtoredit risk in relation to the loan portfalito assist il
determining theappropriateness of provisions for loan impairmenfThese processes also en:
assessments to be made of other classes of dssietsay carry an element of credit risk. The Bané the
Group assigns quality indicators to its credit esyres to determine the asset quality profile.

Large credit exposures are also monitored as pastedlit risk management. These are classifietha
largest 25 individual accounts or groups of relatednterparties. As at 31 December 2015, the 25 lai
exposures totaled K4.6 billion, accounting for 083% of the Bank and 50%f the Group’s total loa
portfolio (2014: K4.1 billion, accounting for ovBB% and 57% respectively).
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33. Credit risk and asset quality (continued)

The Bank of Papua New Guinkas maintained a revised prudential standard &etagiality since Octob
2003. The revised standard specifies more detaiiégtia for the classification of loans into vargograde
of default risk and corresponding loss provisiorels as a consequence of those grading’s.

An analysis by credit quality of loans outstandi@1 December 2015 is as follows:

Lease Policy
2015 Overdrafts Term loans Mortgages financing loans Total
Neither past due nor
impaired 501,022 6,781,727 910,964 222,097 42,761 8,458,571
Past due but not impaired
- Less than 30 days 65,606 139,621 99,990 2,584 - 307,801
- 30to 90 days 3,417 63,060 55,027 4,783 - 126,287
- 91to 360 days 2,815 19,524 12,918 820 - 36,077
71,838 222,205 167,935 8,187 - 470,165
Individually impaired loans
- Lessthan 30 days 123 4,780 6,398 - - 11,301
- 30to 90 days - 3,011 1,600 - - 4,611
- 91to 360 days 5,820 28,862 20,234 14,610 - 69,526
- More than 360 days 4,633 18,513 30,807 259 - 54,212
10,576 55,166 59,039 14,869 - 139,650
Total gross loans, advances
and other receivables from
customers 583,436 7,059,098 1,137,938 245,153 42,761 9,068,386
Less impairment provisions (446,872)
Net Loans & Advances 8,621,514

Credit related commitments

These instruments are used to ensure that fundsvaikable to a customer as required. The Banktlaadsroug
deals principally in the credit related commitmeses out below.

Guarantees and standby letters of credit, whichesgmt irrevocable assnces that the Bank and the Group
make payments in the event that a customer caneet its obligations to third parties, carry the samsk as
loans.

Documentary and trade letters of credit are writtexdertakings by the Bank and the Group lehalf of ¢
customer, authorising third party to draw drafts on the Bank and theupr for specified amounts unc
specified terms and conditions. They are colldisdby the underlying shipments of goods to which tredgite
and therefore carry less risk than a conventicveat.|

Commitments to extend credit represent undrawrnigrtof authorisationt® extend credit in the form of loai
guarantees or letters of credit. Whilst the paéémxposure to loss equates to the total undrasvnneitments
the likely amount of loss is less than the totahodtment since the commitments to extend creditcargingen
upon customers maintaining specific credit stamglarthe Bank and the Group monitors the term tauntgtof
these commitments becaubnger term commitments generally carry a greddgree of credit risk than shor
term commitments.
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33. Credit risk and asset quality (continued)

Economic sector risk concentrations
Economic sector risk concentrations within the oosr loan portfolio are as follows:

All amounts are expressed in K'000

As at 31 December 2015 % 2014 %
Commerce, finance and other business 5,136,578 60 ,665,8594 54
Private households 1,669,618 19 948,957 14
Government and public authorities 126,141 1 81,873 1
Agriculture 405,766 5 322,532 5
Transport & communication 582,835 7 792,809 12
Manufacturing 244,371 3 298,307 4
Construction 456,205 5 646,825 10
Net loan portfolio balance 8,621,514 100 6,756,997 100

Ownership risk concentrations
Ownership risk concentrations within the custonoanl portfolio are as follows:

All amounts are expressed in K'000

As at 31 December 2015 % 2014 %

Corporate / Commercial 4,625,570 54 4,309,941 64

Government 2,110,014 24 1,149,503 17

Retail 1,885,930 22 1,297,553 19

Net loan portfolio balance 8,621,514 100 6,756,997 100
34. Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk of being unable to mdetancial obligations as they fall due. The Boatdpugh the Aset
and Liability Committee, sets liquidity policy tm&ure that the Bank and the Group has sufficiemti$iavailable t
meet all its known and potential obligations.

The matching and controlled mismatching of the miéés and interest rates of ass and liabilities is fundamental
the management of banking activities. An unmatgtesition potentially enhances profitability, buihcalso increas
the risk of losses.

Short-term mismatch of asset and liability maturity at 31 December 2015

The maturity profile of material Assets and Lidligls as at 31 December 20i5shown in the following schedu
The mismatching of maturity of assets and lialeiitindicates an apparent negative net “currentétagssition
However, as stated in the pegling paragraph, mismatched positions are edtabliand managed to achieve pr
opportunities that arise from them, particularlyaimormal yield curve environment. Accordinglyistmismatche
maturity position is considered manageable by thakind the Group, and does not impair the abilityhaf Bank
and the Group to meet its financial obligationghey fall due. The Directors are also of the viévat the Bank an
the Group is able to meet its financial obligatiasshey fall due for the following additional reas:

e The Bank complies with the Cash Reserve Requirenf@RR"”) set by the regulatory authdeis of the
jurisdications that the Bank operates in. The CB&Hies that a bank must hold an amount equalgercentag
of its total customer deposits in the form of caslan account maintained by the respective CeBaalk The
Bank complies with this daily requirement on an @ing basis. The balance of the CRR account is shio
Note 10, Cash and Balances with Central Bank, aoté ®8, Cash and Cash Equivalents.
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34. Liquidity risk (continued)

35.

Maturity of assets and liabilities

All amounts are expressed in K'000

Upto1l Over 5

As at 31 December 2015 month 1-3 months  3-12 months 1-5years years Total
Assets
Cash and balances with
Central Bank 2,562,072 - - - - 2,562,072
Treasury & Central Bank
bills 645,928 624,880 1,222,753 - 9,548 2,503,109
Amounts due from other
banks 630,079 27,731 37,470 - - 695,280
Loans, advances and other
receivables from customers 1,058,463 403,714 1,061,606 3,248,162 2,849,569 8,621,514
Other financial assets 16,534 157,000 175,395 1,317,947 642,050 2,308,926
Total assets 4,913,076 1,213,325 2,497,224 4,566,109 3,501,167 16,690,901
Liabilities
Amounts due to other banks 291,616 11,743 40,841 146 - 344,346
Customer Deposits 11,178,740 546,155 1,533,035 146,407 1,191,037 14,595,374
Other liabilities 957,047 397 1,621 2,984 82,655 1,044,704
Other provisions 182,703 - - - - 182,703
Total liabilities 12,610,106 558,295 1,575,497 149,537 1,273,692 16,167,127
Net liquidity gap (7,697,030) 655,030 921,727 4416572 2,227,475 523,774

Upto1l
As at 31 December 2014  month 1-3 months 3-12 months 1-5years Over5years  Total
Total assets 5,692,609 568,496 1,608,423 3,148,690 3,271,369 14,289,587
Total liabilities 12,799,244 309,78¢ 709,421 122,12¢ 75,73¢ 14,016,314
Net liquidity gap (7,106,635) 258,707 899,002 3,026,565 3,195,634 273,273

Operational risk

Operational risk is the potential exposure to ueekgpd financial or nofinancial losses arising from the way in wh
the Bank and the Group conducts its business. Bbemmof operational risks include employee errsystems failure:
fire, floods, or similar losss to physical assets, fraud, or criminal activ@perational risk is managed through for
policies, documented procedures, business pracimgsompliance monitoring.

An operational risk management function is resgaadior the maintenance ofebe policies, procedures practices
monitoring the organization’s compliance with thermthe Operational Risk Committee coordinates th@agamen
process across the organization.

An independent internal audit function also conduetgular reviews to monitor compliance wipproved BPN(
standards and examines the general standard abtont

The Operational Risk Committee and the internalitafishction mandatorily report to the Board AudRjsk anc
Compliance Committee.
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36. Foreign exchange risk

Foreign exchange risk is the risk to earnings chlbisea change in foreign exchange rates on opeemy positions
The objective of foreign exchange risk managemaettimvthe Bank and the Group is to minimitee impact ol
earnings of any such movement.

The Bank and the Group accepts foreign currencpmérated transactions and therefore has exposuretement:
in foreign currency. The Bank and the Group hasley to offset these transactions to minimisgly exposure. A
foreign exchange contracts generally consist of offsetiognmitments, they involve only limited foreign exciye
risk to the Bank and the Group and material los®ienvisaged.

Currency concentration of assets, liabilities, anaff-balance sheet items

All amounts are expressed in K'000

As at 31 December 2015 PGK FJD SBD usD Other Total

Assets

Cash and balances with
Central Bank

Treasury & Central Ban

1,492,074 444,596 214,083 2,727 408,592 2,562,072

bills 2284741 35620 180,896 . 1852 2,503,109
pmounts due from other 117,206 58986 26,423 135140 357,435 695,280

Loans, advances and oth

receivables from customers 5,851,464 1,733,203 183,451 164,301 689,095 8,621,514

Other financial assets 2,074,124 234,802 - - - 2,308,926
Other assets 1,278,357 125,968 54,988 - 46,089 1,505,402
Total assets 13,098,056 2,633,175 659,841 302,168 1,503,063 18,196,303
Liabilities

Amounts due to other banks (230,615)  (59,545) (54)  (29,776)  (24,356)  (344,346)
Customer Deposits (10,258,953) (2,073,203) (724,148) (677,256) (861,814) (14,595,374)
Other liabilities (1,035,729)  (v6,104) (50,184) - (65,390)  (1,227,407)
Total liabilities (11,525,297) (2,208,852) (774,386) (707,032) (951,560) (16,167,127)
Net on-balance sheet 1,572,759 424,323 (114,545) (404,864) 551,503 2,029,176
position

Off-balance sheet net

notional position (45) - - (1,562) 6,159 4,552
Credit commitments 1,250,124 338,854 4,352 - 3,802 1,606,131
31 December 2014

Total Assets 12,495,902 2,067,893 534,191 202,444 516,077 15,816,507
Total Liabilities (10,808,958) (1,897,941) (432,807) (281,774) (594,834) (14,016,314)
giigg;‘bala”ce sheet 1,686,944 169,952 101,384  (79,330) (78,757) 1,800,193

Off-balance sheet net
notional position

Credit commitments 1,065,452 266,152 14,725 - - 1,346,329

9,977  (10,713) (736)
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36. Foreign exchange risk (continued)

37.

All amounts are expressed in K’000

The following table presents sensitivities of profi loss and equity to possible changes in exchaatgs
applied at the end of the reporting period, retativthe functional currency of the respective @rentities,
with all other variables held constant:

At 31 December 2015 At 31 December 2014
Impact on Impact on Impact on Impact on
profit or loss equity  profit orloss  equity

USD strengthening by 1% (2014 — 1%) 1,372 1,372 903 903
USD dollar weakening by 1% (2014 — 1%) (1,345) (1,345) (885) (885)
AUD strengthening by 1% (2014 — 1%) 7 7 (25) (25)
AUD dollar weakening by 1% (2014 — 1%) (7) (7) 24 24

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk in the balance sheet arises frmnpotential for a change in interest rate toehav advers
effect on the revenue earnings in the current tempiperiod and dture years. As interest rates and y
curves change over time the Bank and the Group beagxposed to a loss in earnings due to the efté
interest rates on the structure of the balancetstgensitivity to interest rates arises from mitrhes n the
repricing dates, cash flows and other characterigtidhie assets and their corresponding liabilityding.
These mismatches are actively managed as parteofotierall interest rate risk management pro
governed by the Assets and Liabiliti€®mmittee (ALCO), which meets regularly to revieve teffects o
fluctuations in the prevailing levels of marketerest rates on the financial position and cashdlo#the
Bank and the Group. The objective of interest risfe control is to minimiseéhese fluctuations in value a
net interest income over time, providing secure stathle sustainable net interest earnings in thg term
The table below illustrates the interest sensitivitassets and liabilities at the balance date.

Given the profile of assets and liabilities as &t[3ecember 2015 and prevailing rates of interest%a
increase in markets rates will result in a K3&ilion increase in net interest income, whilst% #lecreas
in rates will result in a K47.8 million decreaseniet interest income.

Interest sensitivity of assets, liabilities and ofbalance sheet items — re-pricing analysis

All amounts are expressed in K'000

Uptol 1-3 3-12 Over 5 Non-interest

As at 31 December 2015 month months months  1-5years years bearing
Assets
Cash & Central Bank assets - - - - - 1,202,466
Treasury & Central Bank bills 441,264 157,000 175,395 1,087,400 642,050 -
Amounts due from other banks 630,079 27,731 37,470 - - -
Statutory deposit- Cential Banlt - - - - - 1,35¢,60€
Loans, advances and other

receivables from customers 7,512,150150,800 535,575 294,081 128,901 -
Investments 1,657 157,000 175,395 1,251,744 84044¢ -
Other assets 219,023 - - - - 1,169,063
Total assets 8,804,173 492,538 923,835 2,633,2% 1,611,397 3,731,135
Liabilities
Amounts due to other bar 270,942 32,74¢ 36,55¢ - - 4,09t
Customer deposits 6,847,265536,520 1,501,362 167,803 154,177 5,388,247
Other liabilities 103,068 - - - 75525 866,111
Other provisions - - - - - 182,703
Total liabilities 7,221,276 569,269 1,537,921 167,803 229,702 6,441,156
Interest sensitivity gag 1582897 (76,7%) (614,086, 2,46542Z 1,381,695 (2,710,021)
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37. Interest rate risk (continued)

38.

Interest sensitivity of assets, liabilities and ofbalance sheet items — re-pricing analysis

Uptol 3-12 1-5 Over 5

As at 31 December 2014 month  1-3 months months  years  years Non-interest bearing
Assets
Cash & Central Bank assets - - - - - 1,355,469
Treasury & Central Bank Bills 985,499 370,20z 821,872 5,663 - -
Amounts due from other bar 320,99: 29,365 30,29t - - -
Statutory deposits - Central Bank - - - - - 1,251,582
Loans, advances and other

receivables from customers 5,959,668 138,167 338,40¢ 317,912 - 2,844
Investments - - 323,21¢ 1,126,137 1,030,69. -
Other assets 1,684 1,684 7,578 12,13¢ - 1,385,446
Total assets 7,267,844 539,41¢ 1,521,36¢ 1,461,84% 1,030,694 3,995,341
Liabilities
Amounts due to other banks 259,892 - - - - -
Customer deposits 6,988,751 490,62¢ 751,54¢ 127,461 210 4,349,79:
Other liabilities - - - - 75,52¢& 756,548
Other Provisions - - - - - 215,96¢
Total liabilities 7,248,643 490,622 751,54¢ 127,461 75,73E 5,322,306
Interest sensitivity gap 19,201 48,79€ 769,81¢ 1,334,38¢ 954,95¢ (1,326,965)

Fair values of financial assets and liabilities

There is no material difference between the fdueand carryig value of the financial assets and liabili

of Bank of South Pacific Limited and the Group.

The table below analyses the Group’s financialrimsents carried at fair value, by levels in the failue

hierarchy.

The different levels have been defined as follows:
* Level 1 - quoted prices (unadjusted) in active ratgKor identical assets or liabilities.

* Level 2 -inputs other than quoted prices included within élel that are observable for the asse

liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or imdctly (i.e. derived from prices).
* Level 3 —inputs for the asset or liability that are not lthes observable market data
inputs).

All amounts are expressed in K'000

(unobserv

2015 Level 1 Level2 Level 3 Total
Financials assets

Equity securities - 79,544 1,535 81,079
Non-financial assets

Asset held for sale - - 35,135 35,135
Property, plant & equipment - - 686,325 686,325
Total - 79,544 722,995 802,539
Financialsliabilities

Policy liabilities - - 563,441 563,441
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38. Fair values of financial assets and liabilities (a@tinued)
2014 Level 1 Level2 Level 3 Total
Financials assets

Equity securities - 62,430 1,284 63,714
Non-financial assets

Assets held for sale - - 65,052 65,052
Property, plant & equipment - - 662,313 662,313
Total - 62,430 728,649 791,079

Financial liabilities
POIicy liabilities - - 473,753 473,753

There were no changes in valuation technique fareL8 recurring fair value measurements during yaar
ended 31 December 2015 (2014 — norfpperty, plant and equipment and assets helddler represen
commercial land and buildings that the Group basedaluations provided by independent valuers. p8sal
cost for properties classified as held for saleosexpected to be material.

In the normal course of trading, the Bank and theu@ enters into forward exchange contracts. ThekEenc
the Group does not actively enter into or tradecomplex forms of derivative financial instrumestsch a:
currency and interest rate swaps and options.

Exposures in foreign currencies arise where thekBaml the Group transacts in foreign currenciebis Price
risk is minimised by entering into counterbalancpasitions for material exposures as they arisgrwérd anc
spot foreign exchange contracts are used.

Forward exchange contracts outstanding at 31 Deeeftii5stated at the face value of the respective corsl
are:

All amounts are expressed in respective FCY’000kA80

As at 31 December 2015 uUsD AUD EURO GBP JPY Other ofal

Selling FCY (9,979) - (200) (4,050) (11,000) (2,681) -
Kina (45) - - - - (45)
. FCY 9,459 12,780 3,000 820 -
Buying
Kina - - - - - -
As at 31 December 2014 usD AUD EURO GBP JPY Other ofal
Selling FCY (42,143) - (971) (2,450) - - -
Kina 110,701 - 4,058 3,830 - - 118,589
. FCY 41,773 - - 1,000 - - -
Buying
Kina (108,795) - - (4,057) - - (112,852
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39 Insurance

(a) Net insurance operating income

Consolidation Bank
All amounts are expressed in K'000 2015 2014 2015 2014
Net insurance income 21,245 15,684 - -

Presentation of insurance business results intdtersent of comprehensive income has been regrouped
to more accurately reflect the insurance busines$ribution to shareholder profits. Comparativeufigs
have been adjusted to conform to changes in prasemin the current year.

(b) Policy liabilities

Key assumptions used in determining this liabiitg as follows:
Discount rates

For contracts in Statutory Fund 1 which have a Bisonary Participating Fund (DPF), the discoumé ra

used is linked to the assets which back those actstrAt 31 December 2015 this was 5.04% per annum
(2014: 4.84% per annum), based on current 10 y@argment bond yields and expected earnings frem th
investment portfolio. For contracts without DPRlgkccident Business, a rate of 4.2% per annum wsad u

at 31 December 2015 (2014: 3.9% per annum). Ttaee were based on the 10 year government bond rate
as published by the Reserve Bank of Fiji.

Investment and maintenance expenses

Future maintenance and investment expenses aré bashe budgeted expenses. Future inflation has be
assumed to be 3.5% per annum (2014: 3.5% per anfourd@termining future expenses

Taxation

The rates of taxation enacted or substantially texbat the date of the valuation (20%) are assumed
continue into the future

Mortality and morbidity

Projected future rates of mortality for insureceBvare based on the Fiji Mortality Statistics t&8094 Male.
These are then adjusted for the Group’s own expegiel he mortality rates used was 70% of the R¥DBale
table for participating business in Statutory Fidnd

Rates of discontinuance

Best estimate assumptions for the incidenceitifdrawal and discontinuance vary by product andation anc
are based on the Group’s experience which is readevegularly Rates used for the long term insura
contracts are as follows:

2015 2014
Whole of Life and Endowment Insurance 15% 15%
Term Insurance 18% 18%
Accident Insurance 14% 14%
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39

Insurance (continued)
Basis of calculation of surrender values

Surrender values are based on the provisions g aif the policy contracts. There have been nmgas to
surrender bases during the period (or the pridogds) which have materially affected the valuatiesult.

Discretionary Participating Business

For most participating business, bonus rates drsush that, over long periods, the returns toremtolders art
commensurate with the investment returns achievethe pool of assets which provide security for ¢batract
together with other sources of profit arising frahis business. Profits from these policies ardét fgtweer
contract holders ahshareholders in accordance with the policy cammbt which allow for shareholders to sh
in allocations at a maximum rate of 20%. For bussneritten between 1995 and 1998 the shareholdeivex
11% of profits.

In applying the contract holders' sbaof profits to provide bonuses, consideratiomiigen to equity betwee
generations of policyholders and equity betweenwgous classes and sizes of contracts in forasufer
future bonus rates included in the liability foetlong term insuranceontracts were set such that the pre
value of the liabilities equates to the presentigalf assets supporting the business togetherasgbmed futur
investment returns, allowing for the shareholdeglst to participate in distributions.

Reinsurance
Contracts entered into by the Group with Reinsuveider which the Group is compensated for lossesnenol
more contracts issued by the Group, are classiféeinsurance contracts.

As the reinsurance agreements provide for indepatitin bythe Reinsurers against loss or liability, reinsae
income and expenses are recognised separatelgfin @rloss when they become due and payable éoraanct
with the reinsurance agreements.

Reinsurance recoveries are recognised as claimeges under profit or loss. This is netted offiagathe claim
expenses. Reinsurance premiums are recognisedrasiRece Expenses.

All amounts are expressed in K'000 2015 2014
Policy Liabilities

Opening balance 473,753 481,087
Translation movement 40,319 (23,346)
Release provisions to claims & operating expenses - (1,394)
Release provision to fund advance premium - (5)
Release provision to fund negative Regional Shadehdo - (80)
Retained Earnings

Increase in policy liabilities 34,984 17,491
Increase in policy liabilities on revaluation ohth 14,385 -
Total policy liabilities 563,441 473,753
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40. Business combinations
@) Summary of acquisition
During the year the Bank acquired the operatiorth@following entities:

Acquisition date Entity % acquired

9 July 2015 Westpac Banking Corporation Cook d¢ar 100.0

branch
10 July 2015 Westpac Bank of Samoa Limited 9€.70
10 July 2015 Westpac Bank of Tonga Limited 100.0
30 October 2015 Westpac Banking Corporation Sotomo 100.0

Islands branch
Acquisition account K'000
Cash 28,444
Due from other financial institution and regulataigposits 388,151
Loans and advances 573,162
Investment securities 3,080
Other assets and intergroup balances 21,834
Property, plant & equipment 19,380
Tax receivables and deferred tax assets 15,772
Deposits (785,902)
Due to other financial institutions (34,231)
Provisions and other liabilities (10,722)
Net identifiable assets acquired 218,968
Add: goodwill 21,103
Net assets acquired for cash consideration 240,071

(1) Acquired loans and advances
The fair value of acquired loans and advances i83KB2m The gross contractual amount for loans
advances due is K605.028m of which K31.866m is etqakto be uncollectible.

(2) Accounting policy choice for non-controlling interests
The group recognises non-controlling interestsimequired entity either at fair value or at the@no
controlling interest’s proportionate share of teguired entity’s net identifiable assets.

(3) Profit Contribution of acquired businesses
The acquired businesses contributed revenue of288&nd net profit of K11.7m to the Group for the
period from 10 July 2015( Cook Islands, Samoa amulg@) and 30 October 2015 (Solomon Islands) to 31
December 2015. If the acquisitions had occurred danuary 2015, consolidated pro-forma revenue and
profit for the year ended 31 December 2015 woulceHzeen K84.6m and K28.6m respectively.
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40.

41.

42.

Business combinations (continued)

(b)  Purchase consideration — cash outflow

Outflow of cash to acquire subsidiary, net of cash acquired

Cash consideration
Less: cash balances acquired

Net inflow of cash — investing activities

K’000s
240,071
(416,595)

(176,524

Acquisition-related costs of K8.336m that were diogctly attributable to the issue of shares ackuihed in other
operating expenses in the statement of compreheimgiome and in operating cash flows in the stat¢micash

flows.

Events occurring after balance sheet date

There have been no adjusting events after the ftiek @eporting period.

Remuneration of auditors

Consolidated Bank
All amounts are expressed in K'000 2014 2015 2014
Financial statement audits 1,919 1,934 1,568
Other services 936 900 929
3,369 2,855 2,834 2,497

The external auditor PricewaterhouseCoseperalso engaged in providing other services ¢oBank and Group
required and as permitted by prudential standafise provision of other services includexkation and gener

training.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
Bank of South Pacific Limited

Independent Auditor’s Report
to the shareholders of Bank of South Pacific Limited

Report on the financial statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Bank of South Pacific Limited (the Company), which
comprise the statements of financial position as at 31 December 2015, the statements of comprehensive income,
statements of changes in shareholders’ equity and statements of cash flows for the year then ended, and the notes to
the financial statements that include a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information for both the Company and the Group. The Group comprises the Company and the entities it controlled
at 31 December 2015 or from time to time during the financial year.

Directors’ responsibility for the financial statements

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of these financial statements such that they give a true and fair
view in accordance with generally accepted accounting practice in Papua New Guinea and the Companies Act 1997
and for such internal controls as the Directors determine are necessary to enable the preparation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our
audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing. These standards require that we comply with
relevant ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers the internal controls relevant to the Company and the Group’s preparation of
financial statements that give a true and fair view of the matters to which they relate, in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Company and the Group’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates, as well as evaluating
the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

Opinion
In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements:

1. comply with International Financial Reporting Standards and other generally accepted accounting
practice in Papua New Guinea; and

2. give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Company and the Group as at
31 December 2015, and their financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
Bank of South Pacific Limited

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements
The Companies Act 1997 requires that in carrying out our audit we consider and report on the following matters.
We confirm in relation to our audit of the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2015:

1. we have obtained all the information and explanations that we have required;

2, in our opinion, proper accounting records have been kept by the Company as far as appears from an
examination of those records; and

3. we have no relationship with, or interests in, the Company or any of its subsidiaries other than in our
capacities as auditor, and provider of audit-related and taxation services. These services have not
impaired our independence as auditor of the Group.

Restriction on distribution or use

This report is made solely to the Group’s shareholders, as a body, in accordance with the Companies Act 1997. Our
audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Company’s shareholders those matters which we are
required to state to them in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose. We do not accept or assume responsibility
to anyone other than the Company and the Company’s shareholders, as a body, for our audit work, for this report or
for the opinions we have formed.

Prasatalowas!

PricewaterhouseCoopers

. C. Seeto
Registered under the Accountants Registration Act 1996
Partner

Port Moresby
11 March 2016
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